
PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Agenda for Council Committee Meeting of November 6, 2023 

1. Meeting Convenes at 7:00PM – Council Meeting Room
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Hollenbach
3. Attendance
4. Public Forum
5. 2022 Audit Presentation
6. President’s Remarks
7. Public Works Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Steve Rose (Chair), Chuck Brooks, Greg

Martin, Dave Weaver, Dave Worthington
A. Consider Extension of Commingled Recycling Contract with J.P. Mascaro & Sons
B. Consider Extension of Solid Waste Disposal Contract with Waste Management
C. Consider Extension of Residential Yard Waste Contract with Britton Industries
D. Consider Resolution #2023-51 – Handicap Parking Spot for 435 S. Ninth Street
E. Consider Expenditure for Borough Hall Roof

8. Public Utility Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Greg Martin (Interim Chair), Jim Purcell
(Chair), Randy Faulkner, Steve Rose, Dave Weaver

A. Perkasie Wholesale Power Cost Monthly Report
B. Review Live Pricing Bids

9. Planning and Zoning Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Councilors: Dave Weaver (Chair),
Chuck Brooks, Jim Purcell, Steve Rose, Dave Worthington

A. Consider Resolution #2023-52 – Nyce Minor Subdivision – 1017 North Ridge Road
10. Park and Recreation Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Dave Worthington (Chair), Scott

Bomboy, Randy Faulkner, Jim Purcell
11. Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Chuck Brooks (Chair), Scott

Bomboy, Randy Faulkner, Jim Ryder
A. Accept Resignation of Police Officer
B. Consider Appointments to Various Boards & Committees

1. One 2-year Term to the Parks & Recreation Board
12. Finance Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Randy Faulkner (Chair), Scott Bomboy, Jim

Purcell, Jim Ryder, Dave Weaver
A. Consider Resolution #2023-53 – LSA Grant Application – Police Department
B. Consider Resolution #2023-54 – Final Escrow Release – 900 North Ridge Road
C. Consider Resolution #2023-55 – Security Training Services Agreement
D. Consider Donation Request – St. Andrew’s Church Fundraising Event

13. Economic Development Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Scott Bomboy (Chair), Chuck
Brooks, Steve Rose, Randy Faulkner

A. Consider Event Application – The Craftery Market
14. Public Safety Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Greg Martin (Interim Chair), Jim Purcell

(Chair), Scott Bomboy, Mayor Jeff Hollenbach, Jim Ryder
A. Consider Request for Fire Police Assistance – The Craftery Market

15. Historical Committee Meeting, Councilors:  Scott Bomboy (Chair), Randy Faulkner, Greg
Martin, Jim Purcell

16. Report from Youth Councilor – Vacant



17. Other Business
18. Public Forum
19. Press Forum
20. Executive Session
21. Adjournment

Next Meeting:   Monday, November 20, 2023 – 7:00 PM 

Perkasie Borough Council agendas are available via e-mail in advance of the meetings.  Please 
send any agenda requests to: admin@perkasieborough.org.  The agendas are also available on 
our website at www.perkasieborough.org. 

As of the October 3, 2022 meeting, Perkasie Borough Council meeting packets are now 
available on our website at www.perkasieborough.org. 



































Functions/Programs 
Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Refuse collection 
Public works 
Recreation and conservation .......... . 
Employee benefits and insurance .. . 
Miscellaneous 
Interest on long tenn debt 

Total Governmental Activities ..... 
Business type activities: 
Electric ........................................... . 

Total 
General Revenues 
Taxes: 
Property taxes, levied for 
general purposes ........................... . 

Prope1iy taxes, levied for 
fire protection 

Property taxes, levied for 
road improvements 
Earned income taxes 
Local services tax 
Real estate transfer taxes 
Franchise fees 

Investment earnings ......................... . 
Miscellaneous 
Special item - gain on sale of assets 
Transfers .......................................... . 

Total General Revenues 
Change in Net Position .................. .

Net Position - Beginning ............... .

Net Position - Ending .................... .

ExQenses 

$ 973,595 
3,962,744 

693,885 
1,036,167 
2,791,853 

839,419 
1,105 

29,813 
10,328,581 

5,903.255 

16,231,836 

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Charges for 
Services 

$ 312,358 
1,462,862 

842,091 

556,889 

3,174.200 

.8,780,391 

U,954,521 

Program Revenu�s 
Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 315,123 
107,160 
23,667 

320,675 
1,579,869 

253,142 

2,599,636 

81,963 

2,681,599 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 

298,053 

331,123 

629,176 

0 

629J76 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 
Business 

Governmental Type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (346,114) 
(2,392,722) 

469,926 
(715,492) 
(323,972) 
(586,277) 

(1,105) 
(29,813) 

(3.925.569) 

0 

(3.925,569) 

432,422 

136,556 

270,558 
1,726,118 

91,949 
399,503 
157,446 
58,203 
22,171 
28,254 

2,875.000 
6,198.180 
2,272,611 

15,995.204 
$18,267.8) 5 

$ 

0 

2.959,Q99 

2.959.099 

5,086 

(2,875.000) 
(2,869,914) 

89,185 
2.958.887 

$_3,048,072 

$ (346,114) 
(2,392,722) 

469,926 
(715,492) 
(323,972) 
(586,277) 

(1,105) 
(29,813) 

(3,925,569) 

�2,959,099 

(966,470) 

432,422 

136,556 

270,558 
1,726,118 

91,949 
399,503 
157,446 
63,289 
22,171 
28,254 

0 
3,328.266 
2,361,796 

18,954.091 
$'.4' ,315,887 

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.) 
- 15 -









































































































BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 1, 2023 

TO: Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 
Council Members  
Mayor Hollenbach 

CC:  Jeff Tulone 

FROM: Rebecca Deemer 

RE: Extension of Commingled Recycling Contract with J.P. Mascaro & Sons 

Pursuant to the original contract awarded in November of 2019 with J.P. Mascaro & Sons, for 2020 
through 2022, there are two optional one-year extensions that can be approved by Council.  The first 
was approved last November, for 2023. 

At this time, I am requesting that the current contract with J. P. Mascaro & Sons for Commingled 
Recyclables be extended for another one-year extension, for 2024.  

The pricing per the contract will be as follows: 

$145.00 Per month for a 40YD Dumpster ($5.00/month increase from 2023) 
$205.00 Hauling cost per trip ($5.00/trip increase from 2023) 
$  95.00 Disposal price per ton for commingled recyclables (No increase) 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

 
 
DATE: November 1, 2023 
 
TO:   Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 

Council Members  
Mayor Hollenbach 

 
CC:   Jeff Tulone 
 
FROM:  Rebecca Deemer 
 
RE:   Extension of Solid Waste Disposal Contract with Waste Management  
 
Pursuant to the original contract awarded in December of 2020 with Waste Management, Council has 
the option to approve the pricing each year.   
 
At this time, I am requesting that the current contract with Waste Management for solid waste 
disposal be extended for 2024. 
 
The pricing per the contract will be as follows: 
 

$ 93.30 per ton ($3.20/ton increase from 2023) 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 

  
 
  
 

 



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

 
DATE:   November 1, 2023 

 
TO:  Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 

 Council Members  
 Mayor Hollenbach 
 

CC:  Jeff Tulone 
 
FROM:  Rebecca Deemer 
 
RE:  Extension of Residential Yard Waste Contract with Britton Industries  
 
Pursuant to the original contract awarded in November of 2020 with Britton Industries, for 2021 
through 2025, Council has the option to approve the pricing each year.  
 
At this time, I am requesting that the current contract with Britton Industries for residential yard 
waste be extended for 2024.  
 
The pricing per the contract will be as follows: 
 
  $ 125.00  Dumpster cost per month ($10/month increase from 2023) 
  $ 295.00  Hauling cost per trip ($10/trip increase from 2023) 
  $   54.95   Disposal rate per ton ($5/ton increase from 2023) 
 

 If you have any questions, please let me know. 
  
 
  
 

 



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION #2023-51 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
FOR THE CREATION OF A PARKING SPACE RESERVED 
FOR A HANDICAPPED PERSON OR DISABLED VETERAN 

WHEREAS, Perkasie Borough Ordinance #691 provides that Perkasie Borough Council 
may, by Resolution, establish on the streets or borough parking lot, additional parking spaces 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans parking; and  

WHEREAS, Borough Council desires to establish such parking spaces. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following parking space is established and 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans at a space in front of  
435 South 9th Street, Perkasie.  

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

By: By:  _____________________________ 
 Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary  James Ryder, Council President 



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 19, 2023 

TO: Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 
Council Members  
Mayor Hollenbach 
Rebecca Deemer, Finance Director 

FROM: Jeffrey Tulone, Public Works Director 

Jeffrey Tulone 

RE: Roof Ladder for Borough Hall 

At this time, I would like to request that Council approve the purchase of a roof ladder for Borough 
Hall, which would connect the addition’s roof to the roof on the older section of the building.  
Currently, there is no good way to access the roof of the older section of Borough Hall to check on the 
roof drains and inspect the duct work that is on that roof, due to the high parapet wall that surrounds 
that portion of the building.  Sensenig Co. has provided a quote of $3,600 to fabricate and install the 
roof ladder.   They have done work on Borough Hall, the Police Station and the Park restrooms, and 
they are a COSTARS company.  





Borough of Perkasie
Calendar Year 2023

Wholesale Power Cost Summary
September 2023

GDS Associates, Inc 1 10/31/2023



1/ Excludes PJM Market Interaction Costs

2/ Net RPM is capacity load costs less capacity generation credits 

Borough of Perkasie

2023 Year to Date Wholesale Power Summary 

70.2

83.0 84.7
79.7 79.1

84.6
77.2 77.9 73.6

0

20

40

60

80

100

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
/M

W
h

All-in Wholesale Power Rate 

Projected Actual

Budget 74.9

Actual 78.6

YTD Rate ($/MWh)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
W

h

Total Energy Requirements 

Projection Actual

Budget 44,642

Actual 42,361

YTD Energy (MWh)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
'0

0
0

All-in Wholesale Power Cost  

Projection Actual

Budget $3,342

Actual $3,328

YTD Cost ($000s)

19.7

30.5

38.7 36.6 38.7
34.4

22.7 24.4
28.3

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$
/M

W
h

PJM Rates 

NITS Net RPM Ancillary Costs/Other ARR/FTR Net

GDS Associates, Inc 2 10/31/2023



GDS Associates, Inc. 3 10/31/2023

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

$200

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

9/1 9/3 9/5 9/7 9/9 9/11 9/13 9/15 9/17 9/19 9/21 9/23 9/26 9/28 9/30

D
ay

-A
h

e
ad

 M
ar

ke
t 

P
ri

ce
 (

$
/M

W
h

)

M
W

h
Hourly Perkasie Load Wholesale Power Supply 

1.0 MW BP 7X24 1.5 MW CITI 7x24 Shell Fixed Load Shape

2.8 MW BP 5x16 NYPA Market Purchases

Wholesale Load DA LMP

Wholesale Power Supply (MWh) %

NYPA 286 6.5%

Peaking Project 15 0.4%

Resources 302 6.9%

Blocks 3,880 88.3%

Market Purchases 561 12.8%

Market Sales (348) -7.9%

Wholesale Load Responsibility 4,394 100.0%



Borough of Perkasie

All-In Rate Summary

Delta

Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual

($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh) ($/MWh)

Jan-23 $21.45 $32.51 $50.23 $48.50 $145.77 $40.41 $116.08 $28.66 $51.46 $49.18 $22.97 $19.67 $1.53 $1.35 $75.96 $70.20 (5.76)

Feb-23 $21.82 $43.10 $48.23 $47.83 $158.35 $66.23 $73.41 $20.62 $54.41 $50.99 $26.82 $30.46 $1.56 $1.51 $82.79 $82.96 0.18

Mar-23 $23.85 $25.20 $45.59 $44.95 $90.90 $32.67 $62.78 $21.14 $47.14 $44.41 $27.94 $38.71 $1.56 $1.56 $76.65 $84.68 8.04

Apr-23 $24.78 $22.09 $40.48 $41.64 $58.45 $30.99 $48.86 $20.86 $40.26 $41.09 $34.89 $36.65 $1.61 $1.99 $76.77 $79.73 2.96

May-23 $24.22 $22.96 $40.17 $38.78 $66.79 $28.56 $44.29 $19.36 $41.01 $38.45 $34.39 $38.70 $1.61 $1.94 $77.01 $79.10 2.09

Jun-23 $25.55 $19.95 $45.76 $45.39 $74.46 $33.59 $43.82 $18.19 $46.91 $47.78 $23.84 $34.44 $1.58 $2.34 $72.33 $84.56 12.23

Jul-23 $24.93 $25.46 $49.38 $51.01 $83.40 $56.60 $47.39 $12.74 $50.86 $53.11 $19.18 $22.68 $1.54 $1.36 $71.58 $77.15 5.57

Aug-23 $25.15 $20.48 $47.68 $49.19 $81.98 $29.99 $46.49 $16.34 $49.17 $51.85 $19.72 $24.39 $1.54 $1.61 $70.43 $77.85 7.43

Sep-23 $25.93 $25.24 $42.80 $44.19 $63.07 $32.88 $44.86 $14.41 $43.56 $43.72 $26.20 $28.31 $1.60 $1.59 $71.36 $73.61 2.25

Oct-23 $26.38 - $41.05 - $51.43 - $41.53 - $40.44 - $29.51 - $1.62 - $71.56 -

Nov-23 $22.59 - $38.95 - $62.76 - $74.19 - $36.94 - $26.00 - $1.59 - $64.53 -

Dec-23 $22.16 - $45.61 - $84.20 - $58.92 - $46.00 - $24.73 - $1.54 - $72.28 -

YTD $24.15 $26.24 $46.17 $46.32 $91.03 $40.71 $54.46 $19.10 $47.79 $47.36 $25.51 $29.55 $0.02 $1.66 $74.87 $78.56 $3.69

1/ Resource, Purchased Blocks and Market Purchase/Sales include applicable Congestion and Losses costs. Each of these categories are weighted by their applicable energy amounts.

2/ Includes NITS Charge, Net RPM Cost, Ancillary Services Cost and ARR/FTRs Credits, Other Transmission Charges, Admin Fees and Load Reconciliation

3/ Includes AMP Service Fees

4/ All-In Rate is based on Total Sales

2023 Year to Date Summary

Miscellaneous 

Costs3 All-In Rate4Resource Cost1 Purchased Blocks1 Market Purchases1 Market Sales1 Total Energy Cost PJM Cost2

GDS Associates, Inc 4 10/31/2023



Borough of Perkasie

Energy Supply Summary (MWh)

Projected Actual Capacity Factor1 Projected Actual Projected Actual

(MWh) (MWh) (%) (MWh) (MWh) (MWh) (MWh)

Jan-23 276 325 78% 291 329 (189) (590)

Feb-23 250 285 76% 378 200 (133) (457)

Mar-23 277 342 82% 418 213 (310) (285)

Apr-23 268 319 79% 253 108 (144) (258)

May-23 276 330 79% 317 96 (171) (257)

Jun-23 246 290 72% 472 107 (497) (687)

Jul-23 252 309 74% 410 360 (463) (479)

Aug-23 252 301 72% 400 155 (437) (775)

Sep-23 246 286 71% 388 561 (223) (348)

Oct-23 276 - 0% 174 - (142) -

Nov-23 268 - 0% 213 - (266) -
Dec-23 277 - 0% 311 - (247) -

YTD 2,343 2,788 76% 3,328 2,128 (2,567) (4,136)

1/ The Capacity Factor is based on the actual generation.  

NYPA Market Purchases Market Sales

2023 Year to Date Summary

GDS Associates, Inc 5 10/31/2023



Borough of Perkasie

PJM Charge Summary (excl. PJM Market Interaction Costs)

Delta

Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual Projected Actual

($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($/MWh) ($/MWh)
Jan-23 91 62 43 44 - (21) 3 28 138 112 $22.97 $19.67 ($3.30)
Feb-23 91 56 43 40 - (15) 3 61 138 142 $26.82 $30.46 $3.64

Mar-23 91 62 43 44 - (16) 3 96 138 186 $27.94 $38.71 $10.76
Apr-23 91 64 43 43 - (16) 2 45 137 136 $34.89 $36.65 $1.76

May-23 91 66 43 44 - (44) 2 78 137 144 $34.39 $38.70 $4.31
Jun-23 91 64 18 15 - (9) 3 75 113 145 $23.84 $34.44 $10.59
Jul-23 91 67 18 15 - (9) 3 62 113 134 $19.18 $22.68 $3.49

Aug-23 91 67 18 15 - (9) 3 54 113 127 $19.72 $24.39 $4.68
Sep-23 91 64 18 15 - (9) 2 54 112 124 $26.20 $28.31 $2.11
Oct-23 91 - 18 - - - 2 - 112 - $29.51 - -

Nov-23 91 - 18 - - - 2 - 112 - $26.00 - -
Dec-23 91 - 43 - - - 3 - 138 - $24.73 - -

YTD 823 572 291 274 0 (148) 26 554 1,139 1,252 25.51 29.55 4.03

  1/ Net RPM is the RPM Cost less the Generator's RPM Credits.

  2/ Ancillary services/Other also includes: Admin fees, Load Reconciliation and Other Transmission Charges

  3/ The Rate is based on Total Sales 

2023 Year to Date Summary

NITS Net RPM1 ARR/FTR
Ancillary 

Services/Other2 Total Contribution to All-In Rate3

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

$/
M

W
h

PJM Charges

Projection Actual

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

$/
M

W
h

Ancillary Services

Projection Actual

GDS Associates, Inc 6 10/31/2023



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

Invoice Summary1

1. AMP 4,288 $42 $179,130 4,394 $42 $185,635 106.37 $0.47 $6,505

(a) NYPA 246 $25.93 $6,368 286 $14.42 $4,128 40.65 ($11.51) ($2,240)

(b) PA Peaking Project 0 $0.00 $0 15.5 $200.00 $3,097 15.49 $200.00 $3,097

(c) Purchased Blocks 3,877 $42.80 $165,921 3,880 $44.19 $171,443 3.20 $1.39 $5,522

(d) Miscellaneous Costs2
4,288 $1.60 $6,842 4,394 $1.59 $6,967 106.37 ($0.01) $125

2. PJM 4,288 $29.58 $126,827 4,394 $31.36 $137,807 106.37 $1.78 $10,980

(a) Market Purchases 388 $63.07 $24,493 561 $32.88 $18,433 172.20 ($30.18) ($6,060)

(b) Market Sales (223) $44.86 ($10,014) (348) $14.41 ($5,019) (125.16) ($30.45) $4,995

(c) Charges/(Credits)3
4,288 $26.20 $112,348 4,394 $28.31 $124,393 106.37 $2.11 $12,046

3. Total Wholesale Power Costs4: 4,288 $71.36 $305,958 4,394 $73.61 $323,443 106 $2.25 $17,485
September 2015 #N/A

1/ Resource, Purchased Blocks and Market Purchase/Sales includes Congestion and Losses costs.  

2/ Miscellaneous Costs incl. AMP Service Fees

3/ Includes Net RPM (RPM Charges and RPM Credits) for each Resource
4/Based on Total Sales 

ActualProjected Delta

September 2023

GDS Associates, Inc 7 10/31/2023



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / ($/kW-

mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

AMP

Resources

1. NYPA

2.    Fixed Charge 0.6 $6.28 $3,511 0.6 $4.05 $2,267 0 (2.23) ($1,244)

3.    Energy Charge 246 $12.30 $3,021 286 $15.33 $4,389 41 3.03 $1,368

4.    Other Adjustments $0 $0 0 0.00 $0

5.    Congestion & Losses 246 ($0.67) ($164) 286 ($8.83) ($2,527) 41 (8.16) ($2,363)

6. All in Cost 246 $25.93 $6,368 286 $14.42 $4,128 41 (11.51) ($2,240)

7. PA Peaking Project

8.    Fixed Charge 0.0 $0.00 $0 4.3 $0.00 $0 4 0.00 $0

9.    Energy Charge 0 $0.00 $0 15.5 $200.00 $3,097 15 200.00 $3,097

10.    Congestion & Losses 0 $0.00 $0 15.5 $0.00 $0 15 0.00 $0

11. All in Cost 0 $0.00 $0 15.5 $200.00 $3,097 15 200.00 $3,097

12. Total - Resources 246 $25.93 $6,368 302 $23.95 $7,225 56 (1.98) $858

Purchased Blocks

13. BP 1.0 MW 7x24 (PPL)

14.    Energy Charge 720 $34.71 $24,991 720 $34.71 $24,991 0 0.00 $0

15.    Congestion & Losses 720 $0.00 ($263) 720 $0.37 $264 0 0.37 $527

16. All in Cost 720 $34.34 $24,728 720 $35.08 $25,255 0 0.73 $527

17. BP 2.8 MW 5x16 (PPL)

18.    Energy Charge 986 $40.91 $40,321 896 $40.91 $36,655 (90) 0.00 ($3,666)

19.    Congestion & Losses 986 ($0.91) ($900) 896 $0.04 $34 (90) 0.95 $934

20. All in Cost 986 $40.00 $39,421 896 $40.95 $36,689 (90) 0.95 ($2,732)

21. Shell Fixed Load Shape 2x16 (PPL)

22.    Energy Charge 461 $64.85 $29,883 576 $64.85 $37,354 115 0.00 $7,471

23.    Congestion & Losses 461 $0.11 $50 576 ($0.17) ($100) 115 (0.28) ($149)

24. All in Cost 461 $64.96 $29,933 576 $64.68 $37,254 115 (0.28) $7,321

25. Shell Fixed Load Shape 5x16 (PPL)

26.    Energy Charge 246 $64.85 $15,979 224 $64.85 $14,526 (22) 0.00 ($1,453)

27.    Congestion & Losses 246 ($0.91) ($225) 224 $0.04 $8 (22) 0.95 $233

28. All in Cost 246 $63.94 $15,754 224 $64.89 $14,535 (22) 0.95 ($1,219)

29. Shell Fixed Load Shape 7x8 (PPL)

30.    Energy Charge 384 $64.85 $24,902 384 $64.85 $24,902 0 0.00 $0

31.    Congestion & Losses 384 $0.11 $42 384 $1.16 $447 0 1.06 $405

32. All in Cost 384 $64.96 $24,944 384 $66.01 $25,349 0 1.06 $405

33. CITI 1.5 MW 7x24 (PPL Resid)

34.    Energy Charge 1,080 $29.20 $31,536 1,080 $29.20 $31,536 0 0.00 $0

35.    Congestion & Losses 1,080 ($0.37) ($395) 1,080 $0.76 $824 0 1.13 $1,219

36. All in Cost 1,080 $28.83 $31,141 1,080 $29.96 $32,360 0 1.13 $1,219

37. Total - Purchased Blocks 3,877 $42.80 $165,921 3,880 $44.19 $171,443 3 1.39 $5,522

ActualProjection Delta

September 2023

GDS Associates, Inc 8 10/31/2023



Borough of Perkasie

Billing Unit Rate
Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)
Billing Unit Rate

Total Cost / 

(Credit)

(MWh)/(MW)
($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / ($/kW-

mo)
($) (MWh)/(MW)

($/MWh) / 

($/kW-mo)
($)

ActualProjection Delta

September 2023

Miscellaneous Costs

38. AMP Fees 4,288 $1.60 $6,842 4,394 $1.59 $6,967 106 (0.01) $125

39. Total - Miscellaneous Costs 4,288 $1.60 $6,842 4,394 $1.59 $6,967 106 (0.01) $125

40. Total - AMP $179,130 $185,635 0 0.00 $6,505

PJM Charges 

41. Market Interaction

42. Net Market Purchases 388 $63.07 $24,493 561 $32.88 $18,433 172 ($30.18) ($6,060)

43. Day-Ahead Purchases 568 $33.92 $19,252 568 $33.92 $19,252

44. Balancing Purchases 73 $30.44 $2,208 73 $30.44 $2,208

45. Net Market Sales (223) $44.86 ($10,014) (348) $14.41 ($5,019) (125) ($30.45) $4,995

46. Day-Ahead Sales (314) $14.86 ($4,670) (314) $14.86 ($4,670)

47. Balancing Sales (114) $29.67 ($3,375) (114) $29.67 ($3,375)

48. NITS 12 $7.32 $91,390 8 $7.86 $64,461 (4) $0.54 ($26,928)

49. Other Transmission Charges 12 $0.00 $0 8 $0.93 $7,649 (4) $0.93 $7,649

50. RPM Capacity

51. RPM Charge 13 $1.52 $19,340 10 $1.49 $15,417 (2) ($0.03) ($3,923)

52. RPM Credit ($847) ($891) ($44)

53. Net RPM $18,493 $14,526 ($3,967)

54. Ancillary 4,288 $0.57 $2,465 4,394 $1.10 $4,826 106 $0.52 $2,361

55. ARR/FTR Credits 4,288 $0.00 $0 4,394 ($2.02) ($8,864) 106 ($2.02) ($8,864)

56. Administration Charges 4,288 $0.00 $0 4,394 $0.44 $1,926 106 $0.44 $1,926

57. True-Up Load Reconciliation $0 $39,868 $39,868

58. Total PJM Charges 4,288 $29.58 $126,827 4,394 $31.36 $137,807 106 $1.78 $10,980

GDS Associates, Inc 9 10/31/2023



Acryonym: General Description: In Reference to Perkasie: 

TRANSMISSION 

“NSPL” 
Network Service Peak 
Load 

• Billing Units for NITS, TEC, and other transmission costs 

• Also referred to as the 1-CP 

• Zonal peak load hour occuring between each November 1st and October 31st 
 

• When speaking about Perkasie, we are referring to the 
Borough’s metered demand coincident with the zonal peak, 
otherwise, its contribution to the PPL Zonal peak 

“NITS” 
Network Integration 
Transmission Service 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• Transmission service that allows network customs to integrate, economically 
dispatch, and regulate their network resources and serve their load 

 

• NITS is Perkasie’s largest transmission related charge, which 
is billed on a daily basis 

• NITS = PPL Zonal NITS Rate ($/MW-day) x NSPL (MW) x 
#Days/Billing Month 
 

“TEC” 
Transmission 
Enhancement 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• Transmission service that pays for upgrades and enhancements to provide 
for operational, economic, and reliability requirements of network 
customers 
 

• TEC is billed on a monthly basis 

• TEC = PPL Zonal TEC Rate ($/kW-mo) x NSPL x 1000 

CAPACITY/”RPM” (RELIABILITY PRICING MODEL) 

“UCAP” 
Unforced Capacity 

• Billing Units for RPM charges associated with load 

• Also referred to as the Summer 5-CP 

• 5 highest RTO-wide peaks occurring between June 1st and September 30th 
each year, that each occur on a unique day 

 

• When speaking about Perkasie, we are referring to the 
average of the Borough’s metered demand coincident with 
the 5 RTO peaks, then grossed up by a planning reserve 
margin 

RPM Charges 
 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• The cost associated with maintaining system reliability based on a load 
serving entity’s contribution to total demand 
 

• RPM is billed on a daily basis 

• RPM Charge = PPL Zonal Load Pricing Rate ($/MW-day) x 
UCAP (MW) x #Days/Billing Month 

RPM Credits 
 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• The credit associated with the resources that are bid in and clear in the 
Reliability Pricing Model auctions, which offset RPM Charges 

• RPM is billed on a daily basis 

• RPM Credit = Resource Clearing Rate ($/MW-day) x Cleared 
Capacity (MW) x #Days/Billing Month 

• When we refer to “Net RPM”, we are referring to the RPM 
Charges less RPM Credits 
 

ARR/FTRs (CONGESTION HEDGING) 

“ARR” 
Auction Revenue Rights 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• Entitlements allocated annually to firm transmission service customers that 
entitle the holder to receive an allocation of the revenues or charges from 
the annual FTR auction  
 

• ARR revenues are determined on an annual basis, but 
distributed evenly across each month 

 

“FTR” 
Financial Transmission 
Rights 

• PJM Billing Line Item 

• Financial instruments awarded to bidders in the FTR Auctions that entitle the 
holder to a stream of revenues or charges based on the Day-Ahead 
congestion on the FTR pathway 
 

• FTR revenues are calculated on an hourly basis, and billed at 
the end of each month 
 



Borough of Perkasie, PA
Fall 2023 RFP - Live Pricing

October 18, 2023

Rank Bidder PPL Zone Rank Bidder West Hub

1 BP 42.58 1 Shell 49.80

2 Shell 42.85 2 Shell 50.64

3 J. Aron 43.11 3 J. Aron 50.94

4 Morgan Stanley 44.19 4 Morgan Stanley 51.30

5 Bidder 5 0.00 5 Bidder 5 0.00

6 #N/A #N/A 6 #N/A #N/A

7 #N/A #N/A 7 #N/A #N/A

8 #N/A #N/A 8 #N/A #N/A

9 #N/A #N/A 9 #N/A #N/A

10 #N/A #N/A 10 #N/A #N/A

Rank Bidder PPL Zone Rank Bidder West Hub

1 BP 48.58 1 Shell 57.30

2 Shell 48.90 2 BP 58.07

3 J. Aron 49.54 3 Morgan Stanley 58.59

4 Morgan Stanley 50.19 4 J. Aron 58.87

5 Bidder 5 0.00 5 Bidder 5 0.00

6 #N/A #N/A 6 #N/A #N/A

7 #N/A #N/A 7 #N/A #N/A

8 #N/A #N/A 8 #N/A #N/A

9 #N/A #N/A 9 #N/A #N/A

10 #N/A #N/A 10 #N/A #N/A

Product 1: 1.0 MW 7x24, CY 2026-2030 [43,824 MWh]

Product 2: 1.5 MW 5x16, CY 2026-2030 [30,648 MWh]







  

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-52 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL IN AND FOR 
THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE, BUCKS COUNTY, 
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, APPROVING THE 
MINOR SUBDIVISION APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY 
GREGORY A. AND MALISA ANN NYCE AS A FINAL MINOR 
SUBDIVISION PLAN  

 
 

WHEREAS, Gregory A. and Malisa Ann Nyce (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) 

propose to subdivide Bucks County Tax Parcel No. 33-007-009 containing approximately 3.0689 

acres; and 

WHEREAS, the Application proposes to subdivide Tax Parcel Nos. 33-007-009 so as to 

create a new 1.42978 acre lot with access to North Ridge Road, with the remainder of the parcel 

to consist of a 1.6392 acre lot with access to North Ridge Road that will contain the existing 

dwelling and other improvements; and 

WHEREAS, access for Lot 1 as depicted on the Plan will be provided by the existing 

access easement through the property in Tax Parcel 33-007-008; and  

WHEREAS, the site is zoned Single-Family Residential (R-1A) which permits single-

family residential dwellings and the intended uses are consistent with the provisions of the 

Perkasie Borough Zoning Map; and 

WHEREAS, the plans were prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC, were dated 

August 18, 2023, and last revised October 19, 2023, consisting of seven (7) sheets; and 

WHEREAS, the Perkasie Borough Planning Commission at its meeting held on 

September 27, 2023, recommended conditional approval of the Final Minor Subdivision; and 



     2 

WHEREAS, the Perkasie Borough Planning Commission recommended the grant of 

waivers from the following Sections of the Perkasie Borough Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance : 

1. §164-20.C – Requires that streets be constructed in accordance with the 

requirements as set forth therein.  Applicant is seeking a partial waiver to the extent it may apply 

to existing road frontages; 

2.  §164-20.C & §164-26 –  Requires that all sidewalks be laid out and constructed 

in accordance with the current regulations and specifications of the Borough related to sidewalks, 

but Applicant seeks a partial waiver to the extent that it may apply to existing sidewalks as there 

are currently no sidewalks in the area. 

3. §164-20.C & §164-28 –  Requires that curbs be provided along both sides of all 

streets, but no curbs are proposed. 

4. §164-36.D – Requires that in residential subdivisions or land development 

applications the Applicant shall dedicate suitable open areas for recreation.  Applicant does not 

provide any recreational area, but is agreeable to providing a fee-in-lieu for the additional lot for 

the proposed new dwelling. 

5. §164-4 – The Minor Subdivision definition requires that it be a minor subdivision 

depending upon the extent of improvements and the waiver is being requested because of the 

insignificant nature of the subdivision. 

6. §164-41.1.B.(3) –  Requires that a forty-eight-inch-high wooden snow fence be 

placed along the boundary of the tree protection zone.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of 

Perkasie, that the Borough Council hereby approves the Minor Subdivision Plan of Gregory A. 

and Malisa Ann Nyce, subject to the following conditions: 



     3 

 

1. Compliance with the Gilmore & Associates, Inc., Engineer review letter dated 

October 31, 2023, except to the extent a waiver is granted as part of the approval process; 

2. Compliance with the Gilmore & Associates, Inc., planning review letter dated 

August 24, 2023; 

3. Compliance with the Bucks County Planning Commission letter dated September 

19, 2023; 

4. Compliance with the conditions noted in the Perkasie Borough Planning 

Commission’s Memorandum dated September 28, 2023;  

5. Applicant shall pay a Park and Recreation fee-in-lieu of dedication of Park and 

Recreation land for the one (1) additional lot in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($1,500.00), which shall be payable at the time of the application for a building permit; 

6. Applicant shall obtain any and all additional permits and/or approvals as required 

for the Perkasie Regional Authority, the Bucks County Conservation District; Pennsylvania 

Department of Environmental Protection, Pennsylvania Department of Transportation; and/or 

any other local, state, county, and/or federal authority or agency requiring permit applications 

and approvals (“Additional Permits”).  Copies of these permits and approvals shall be submitted 

to the Borough; 

7. Applicant shall fund and execute land development, financial security and 

stormwater facilities maintenance and monitoring agreements, in a form satisfactory to the 

Borough Solicitor, prior to plan recordation, if required; 

8. If required to obtain permits by the Applicant, the Borough agrees to sign paper 

copies of the approved preliminary as final subdivision plan provided they bear the legend "not 

to be recorded" if signed paper copies are required to be submitted to the various local, state and 



     4 

federal agencies that must approve the various approvals, permits, certificates and the like for the 

project; provided, however, that the Borough reserves the right to participate in all approval and 

permitting procedures which may be required for the approval of this plan; 

9. Applicant shall pay all review and professional fees in connection with all prior 

reviews and the reviews in connection with this approval as required by the Borough Subdivision 

and Land Development Ordinance and its applicable rate structure; 

10. The Plan shall be ADA compliant, to the extent applicable; 

11. The Borough Council, by the approval of this Resolution, hereby grants waivers 

from the provisions of Sections 164-20.C., 164-20.C. & 164-26, 164-20.C. & 164-28, 164-36.D., 

164-4, and 164-41.1.B.(3) of the Perkasie Borough Subdivision and Land Development 

Ordinance, as noted previously in this Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Perkasie Borough Council, in lieu of 

a public hearing, has offered the public the opportunity to comment on the proposed plan at a 

public meeting in accordance with the requirements of 53 P.S. §10508, and has provided 

residents with the ability to comment and address concerns relative to the Minor Subdivision 

Plan at all public meetings discussing this Plan, and after consideration of the Plan and the 

aforementioned conditions, finds that the approval of the Applicant’s Final Minor Subdivision 

Plan will not be detrimental to the welfare, health, peace, and morals of the Perkasie Borough or 

its residents; and  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Perkasie Borough Council approves, by 

adoption of this Resolution, the Applicant’s Final Minor Subdivision Plan and the Waivers 

referenced above, subject to the aforementioned conditions; and 

 



     5 

 THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Perkasie Borough Council on the 

6th day of November, 2023. 

 

ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ By:       
                Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary   James Ryder, Council President 
   



BUX-MONT SURVEYING SERVICES, LLC 
10 King Road 

Telford, PA. 18969 
267-218-1064 

BKPattersonPLS@outlook.com 
November 1, 2023 

 

Perkasie Borough 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA. 18944 
 

ATTN: Ms. Debbie Sergeant 
 

    SUBJ:   Nyce Minor Subdivision/Land Development 
     Perkasie Borough, Bucks County 
       G&A File No. 23-06078 

 
Dear Ms. Sergeant, 

 

The following revised waivers from the Perkasie Borough Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance are 
respectfully requested in order to implement the plan as proposed: 

Section 164-4 – Minor Subdivision Definition 

The Senior Lot of this Minor Subdivision has been utilizing an existing driveway that has access on both North 
Ridge Road and Blooming Glen Road for many generations.  Access easements are currently in place for the 
continued use of these easements.  We would ask that this minor issue not put these homeowners into a Major 
Subdivision category. 

Section 164-20.C – Street Standard 

This section of the ordinance states: “Streets shall be constructed in accordance with the following 
requirements” and provides a chart listing the requirements.  No streets are proposed as part of this subdivision.  
It is the applicant’s position that no waiver is needed.  Without waiving that position, the applicant seeks a 
partial waiver to the extent this may apply to the existing road frontages as this Minor Subdivision will provide 
only minimal impact to the community with one additional dwelling. 

Sections 164-20.C & 164-26 – Sidewalks 

This section of the ordinance states: “All sidewalks shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with current 
regulations and specifications of the Borough relating to curbs and sidewalks”.  No streets or sidewalks are 
proposed as part of this subdivision. It is the applicant’s position that no waiver is needed.  Without waiving 
that position, the applicant seeks a partial waiver to the extent this may apply to the existing roadways, as there 
are currently no sidewalks in the area. 

Sections 164-20.C & 164-28 – Curbing 

This section of the ordinance states: “All curbs shall be constructed in accordance with current regulations and 
specifications of the Borough relating to curbs and sidewalks”.  No curbs or sidewalks are proposed as part of 
this subdivision. It is the applicant’s position that no waiver is needed.  Without waiving that position, the 



applicant seeks a partial waiver to the extent this may apply to the existing roadways, as there is currently no 
curbing in the vicinity of the project.  Additionally, installing curbing could negatively affect the drainage 
patterns for downstream property owners. 

Section 164-36.D - Recreation Land 

Since there is no suitable area on this property for recreation facilities, the applicant is requesting that the fee in 
lieu option as outlined in the ordinance be implemented on this site for the new proposed dwelling. 

Section 164-41.1.B.(3) – Use of forty-eight inch-high wooden snow fence as tree protection barrier. 

A waiver is being requested from the requirement that forty-eight-inch-high wooden snow fence mounted on 
steel posts, located eight feet on center, be placed along the boundary of the tree protection zone.  The applicant 
is requesting to use 48-inch plastic orange fencing as the tree protection barrier. 

 

 

 

Sincerely: 

Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC 

 

Brian K. Patterson, P.L.S. 

 

 

 

 



 

65 E. Butler Avenue | Suite 100 | New Britain, PA 18901 Phone: 215-345-4330 | Fax: 215-345-8606 

www.gilmore-assoc.com 

October 31, 2023  
 
File No. 23-06078 
 
Debbie Sergeant 
Code Enforcement Administrator 
Borough of Perkasie 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA 18944 
 
Reference: Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan Review #2 
 1017 North Ridge Road 
 TMP #33-007-009 
  

Dear Debbie: 
 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. (G&A) has reviewed the Minor Subdivision Plan Resubmission Package for the 
above-referenced project.  We offer the following comments for consideration by the Borough: 
 
I. Submission 

 
A. Minor Subdivision Plans prepared for 1017 N. Ridge Road, as prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying 

Services, LLC, seven (7) sheets, dated August 18, 2023 and last revised October 19, 2023. 

B. Stormwater Management Report prepared for Gregory A. & Malisa Ann Nyce, as prepared by Lenape 
Valley Engineering, dated August 16, 2023 and last revised October 17, 2023. 

C. Response Letter for Nyce Minor Subdivision/Land Development, as prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying 
Services, LLC, dated October 19, 2023. 
 

II. General Information 
 

The subject property, located at 1017 North Ridge Road in Perkasie Borough, Bucks County, PA, consists of tax 
map parcel 33-007-009 and contains an area of 3.0689 acres (gross).  The site includes an existing dwelling with 
patio and deck, detached garage and shed, and an abandoned quarry pond.  The property was recently 
consolidated and then subdivided with the adjacent parcel (TMP #33-007-008) at the corner of North Ridge Road 
(S.R. 0563) and West Blooming Glen Drive and share a connecting driveway that has access to both roads.  The 
parcel is also bordered to the southeast by an unimproved 12-foot-wide paper alley.  The existing dwelling is 
served by public water and sewer. 
 
The Applicant and Owner of Record, Gregory A. and Malisa Ann Nyce, proposes to subdivide the parcel to create 
a new 1.4297 acre building lot with access to North Ridge Road (S.R. 0563).  The remainder of the parcel 
consisting of a 1.6392-acre lot will contain the existing dwelling, garage and shed with frontage on North Ridge 
Road which consists entirely of the existing pond.  Access for Lot 1 will be provided by the existing access 
easement through the property and TMP #33-007-008.  The site is zoned Single Family Residential (R-1A) Zoning 
District and the intended uses are “Single-Family Detached Dwelling” (B1), which is a use permitted by right in 
the R-1A Zoning District.  According to FEMA map 42017C0143J, dated March 16, 2015, the site is located in 
Zone “X”, which is outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.  According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s 
National Wetlands Inventory, the 0.73-acre existing quarry is considered a freshwater pond.  The new building 
lot will be served by public water and sewer provided by the Perkasie Regional Authority (PRA).  The site is 
located within the East Branch Perkiomen Creek Watershed. 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 2 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                              October 31, 2023

 
 

We note that the Perkasie Borough Planning Commission recommended Final Minor Subdivision Approval 
with waivers at their regular meeting held on September 27, 2023. 
 

III. Review Comments 
 

A. Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 186) 
 

We have identified the following issue in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance: 
 
1. §186-20.A.(2) – The minimum lot area shall exclude areas used for easements.  The ‘Zoning Data’ 

table lists the gross lot area for Lots 1 and 2 in the row for Minimum Lot Area (Net).  The minimum 
lot area (net) for Lots 1 and 2 should be revised to match the Min. Net Area Per Dwelling Unit area. 
 

B. Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (Chapter 164) 
 

We have identified the following issues in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Perkasie Borough Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO): 

 
1. The Applicant is requesting the following waivers with the accompanying justifications.  We note 

that an updated waiver request letter shall be provided to the Borough and our office prior to the 
meeting with Borough Council. 

a. §164-4. – A waiver from the requirement that a Minor Subdivision not include the need for an 
access easement.  Lot 1 fronts on North Ridge Road.  However, the roadway is inaccessible to 
this lot due to the existing quarry pond.  The subdivision requires the use of an easement across 
either Lot 2 to access North Ridge Road or across TMP #33-007-008 for access to West 
Blooming Glen Drive.  We note that this would occupy the same access easement available to 
TMP #33-007-008 for access to North Ridge Road created by the previous minor subdivision.  
We have no objection to this waiver request. 

b. §164-20.C. – A waiver from the requirement that streets be constructed in accordance with the 
following requirement: Cartway width of 40 feet for Collector Streets.  North Ridge Road (S.R. 
0563) is classified as a Collector Street with an existing cartway width of approximately 25 feet.  
North Ridge Road is a state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would require a 
Highway Occupancy Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the previous minor 
subdivision, and we have no objection to this waiver request.  We also note that the Borough 
does not have the authority to waive the requirements of PennDOT. 

c. §164-20.C. & §164-26. – A waiver from the requirement that sidewalks be provided along both 
sides of all streets, except in the opinion of the Borough Council with the advice of the Planning 
Commission that they are unnecessary for the public safety and convenience, and that 
sidewalks be constructed on one side of all frontage streets and both sides of all other streets 
within the subdivision in accordance with §164-51.A.  As noted above, North Ridge Road is a 
state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would require a Highway Occupancy 
Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the previous minor subdivision, and we 
have no objection to this waiver request since there are no sidewalks along the road in the 
vicinity of the project. 

d. §164-20.C. & §164-28. – A waiver from the requirement that curbs be provided along both sides 
of all streets, unless in the opinion of Borough Council with the advice of the Borough Engineer 
that they are unnecessary, and that curbs be constructed along the existing street on which a 
subdivision or land development abuts in accordance with §164-52.B.  As noted above, North 
Ridge Road is a state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would require a 
Highway Occupancy Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the previous minor 
subdivision, and we have no objection to this waiver request since there are no curbs along the 
road in the vicinity of the project. 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 3 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                              October 31, 2023

 
 

e. §164-36.D. – A waiver from the requirement that residential subdivisions or land development 
applications dedicate suitable open areas for recreation.  For each residential dwelling unit, a 
minimum of 1,500 square feet of land shall be dedicated for recreation space.  We have no 
objection to this waiver request conditioned upon the Applicant providing $1,500.00 for the new 
dwelling unit payable at the time of the building permit in accordance with §164-36.E.(1). 

f. §164-41.1.B.(3) – A waiver from the requirement that forty-eight-inch-high wooden snow fence 
mounted on steel posts, located eight feet on center, be placed along the boundary of the tree 
protection zone.  The applicant is proposing to use 48-inch plastic orange fencing as the tree 
protection barrier.  We have no objection to this waiver request.    

 
2. §164-30.G. – House numbers shall be assigned in accordance with Borough requirements.  The 

house number for the new dwelling on Lot 2 should be added to the Minor Subdivision Plan prior to 
final recording of the plan. 

 
3. §164-31. – The following issues related to grading should be addressed: 

a. The flow paths on the southern side of the dwelling are intended to direct runoff towards the 
trench for the infiltration bed.  However, the proposed 549 tie in contour will create a swale which 
directs runoff around the trench.  The grading should be revised and spot elevations provided 
as necessary to ensure the drainage is directed towards the trench. 

b. The location of the walk out basement access and sump pump discharge should be noted on 
the plans. 

c. Based on the level spreader elevation of 544.00, the proposed 544 contour should extend 
around the southern side of the level spreader. 

4. §164-32. – Access and utility easements are provided across the subject property and TMP #33-
007-008 for access and utilities.  These easements and easement agreements should be revised 
as necessary based on the proposed subdivision. 
 

5. §164-50.A. – It should be noted on the Minor Subdivision Plan that the monuments shall be installed 
prior to recording of the plan and a monumentation certification shall be provided to the Borough. 

 
6. §164-54.A & B. – Tapping fees shall be paid to the Perkasie Regional Authority (PRA) prior to the 

release of any building permits.   
 
7. §164-69. – The following information and/or clarifications should be added to the Minor Subdivision 

Plan: 

a. The BCPC# and certification date for the Bucks County Planning Commission should be added 
to the plan. 

b. The ‘Zoning Data’ table notes a front yard setback of 212.0 FT for Lot 2.  This appears to be the 
shortest distance to North Ridge Road.  However, it is not within the boundary of Lot 2.  The 
distance should be revised to list the distance from the garage to the northern Lot 2 property 
corner along North Ridge Road.   

 
8. §164-69.D.(5) – A copy of the Sewage Facilities Planning Module exception mailer has been 

submitted to the Borough for review.  A copy of the approved Sewage Facilities Planning exception 
should be provided to the Borough and our Office. 
 

C. Stormwater Management (Chapter 158) 
 

We have identified the following issues in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Amended Stormwater Management Ordinance: 
 
1. §158-18.I.(1) – The following issues related to the infiltration bed design should be addressed: 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 4 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                              October 31, 2023

 
 

a. The riser pipes within the bed connected to the yard drains should be perforated and extend to 
the bottom of the bed to assist with distribution and allow the homeowner to properly monitor 
the infiltration rate within the facility. 

b. A detail for the yard drains over the stormwater bed should be provided. 
 
2. §158-19. – The following issues related to the stormwater calculations should be addressed: 

a. The Stormwater Notes on Sheet 3 indicate that the stormwater facility has been designed to 
accommodate up to 1,000 square feet of new impervious in the bypass drainage shed.  This is 
not consistent with the runoff coefficient calculations provided in the report which only include 
an impervious area of 0.01 acres (436 s.f.).  Also, the note is not consistent with the Impervious 
Coverage table which lists 765 square feet of “Future Impervious”.  Furthermore, the 
stormwater report notes that an additional 1,000 s.f. of future impervious coverage has been 
included in the BMP inflow shed.  The amount of future impervious included in the design 
should be clarified and the runoff coefficients should be revised as necessary. 

b. The model for the stormwater bed does not appear to include storage below the discharge 
pipe.  For each hydrograph, the runoff volume discharge from the bed (BMP Outflow) is only 4 
cubic less than the runoff volume to the bed (BMP Inflow).  This results in a hydrograph for the 
2-year storm which indicates an 808 cubic foot increase in runoff in the post development 
condition and is not consistent with the storage volume provided in the bed below the discharge 
pipe elevation.  The Pond report should be revised to accurately model the storage capacity 
within the bed. 

 
3. §158-20.D. – We note that an “Adequate, with Comments” letter has been issued by the Bucks 

County Conservation District.  Once the plans have been approved by the Borough, an updated 
adequacy letter noting the most recent plan revision date should be obtained from the Conservation 
District. 
 

4. §158-40.A. – Prior to final approval of the site’s Stormwater Management Site Plan, the Applicant 
shall sign and record a Stormwater Facilities Maintenance and Monitoring Agreement prepared and 
approved by the Borough Solicitor covering all stormwater control facilities that are to be privately 
owned. 

 

D. General Comments 
 

1. The ‘Waivers Requested’ descriptions on Sheet 1 appear to use the language from our review letter 
and should be revised to list the relief requested, consistent with the waiver request letter to be 
provided to the Borough. 
 

2. A legal description for each lot, as well as any easements should be provided to the Borough for 
review and approval prior to final plan recording. 

 
3. The Applicant is responsible for any other required approvals, permits, etc.  Copies of these permits 

and approvals should be submitted to the Borough. 
 
We recommend that the plans be revised to address the above comments to the satisfaction of the Borough.  
In order to help expedite the review process of the resubmission of the plans, the Applicant should submit a 
response letter which addresses each of the above comments.  Changes that have been made to the application 
that are unrelated to the review comments should also be identified in the response letter. If you have any 
questions regarding the above, please contact this office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 5 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                              October 31, 2023

 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Douglas C. Rossino, P.E. 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
Borough Engineers 
 
DCR/tw 
 
cc: Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager 
 Megan McShane, Executive Assistant 
 Jeffrey P. Garton, Esq., Borough Solicitor 
 Nicholas Fretz, Manager, Perkasie Regional Authority 
 Gregory A. & Malisa Ann Nyce, Owner/Applicant 
 Brian K. Patterson, P.L.S., Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC 
 Erik Garton, P.E., E.V.P., Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 

















BUX-MONT SURVEYING SERVICES, LLC 
10 King Road 

Telford, PA. 18969 
267-218-1064 

BKPattersonPLS@outlook.com 
October 19, 2023 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
65 E. Butler Ave, Suite 100 
New Britain PA. 18901 
 

ATTN: Mr. Douglas C. Rossino, P.E. 
 

    SUBJ:   Nyce Minor Subdivision/Land Development 
     Perkasie Borough, Bucks County 
       G&A File No. 23-06078 

 
Dear Mr. Rossino, 
Below is a description of how the comments in your review letter dated September 18, 2023 have been 

addressed. 

A. Zoning Ordinance Chapter 186 

1. The ‘Minimum Lot Area’ calculations have been revised to remove the area of easements. The Zoning Data 

Table and Parcel Area Tabulation have been revised accordingly. 

2. The 20 foot wide buffer area has been added to the plan.  

B. Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Chapter 164 

1. A “Waiver Request” letter is being submitted. 

a. Waiver Requested for review as a “Minor Subdivision” 

b. Waiver Requested from street improvements. (understood North Ridge Road is a state road) 

c. Waiver Requested from sidewalks. (understood North Ridge Road is a state road) 

d. Waiver Requested from curbing. (understood North Ridge Road is a state road) 

e. Waiver requested for dedication of Open Space. A fee in lieu of $1,500 to be paid. 

f. A Waiver was recently requested and approved at the Perkasie Borough Planning Commission 

meeting to allow Orange Plastic fence instead of Wooden Tree protection fence to act as a 

woodland protection zone. Section 164-41.1.B.(3) 

2. We are requesting a waiver from this application being viewed as a Major Subdivision due to lack of direct 

access to North Ridge Road. 

3. House numbers will be added to the Record Plan when assigned, prior to recording. 

4. New Access & Utility Easements will have new legal descriptions written and submitted prior to recording. 

5. A waiver was recently requested and approved at the Perkasie Borough Planning Commission meeting to 

allow Orange Plastic fence instead of Wooden Tree protection fence to act as a woodland protection zone. 

Section 164-41.1.B.(3). 

6. All new lot corners have been labeled with “Iron Pin to be set”. 

7. A letter/email has been sent by Nicholas Fretz from Perkasie Regional Authority. 

8.  

a. The signature line for the BCPC has been removed. 

b. The right-of-way and cartway widths for North Ridge Road have been added to the plans. 

c. Building setback distances for proposed buildings have been added. 

d. Building setback distances for existing buildings have been added. 

e. The property boundary distances have been added to the plan. 



f. The sub distance has been added to the plan. 

g. The sub distance has been added to the plan. 

h. The sub distances have been added to the plan. 

9. A sewage facilities planning module is still in processing. 

10. A letter indicating sufficient water flow from the fire hydrant has been supplied. 

 

C. Stormwater Management Chapter 158 

1. The plan has been revised to provide a level spreader that will convert the concentrate flow from the 

stormwater bed to sheet flow before leaving the property.  The level spreader is 30 feet long and was sized 

in accordance with the PA DEP BMP manual.  Calculations are contained in the stormwater management 

report, and details are included on the stormwater plan sheet.  The level spreader will be located 20 feet 

from the property line.  Since the flow rate is being reduced and being converted to sheet flow, we do not 

believe that approval from the downstream property owners in required. 

2. Stormwater infiltration testing was performed by CTL, Inc.  The results of the testing are included in the 

stormwater report.  The results were favorable for infiltration in the area of the stormwater bed. 

3. The bed design has been revised slightly to include two yard inlets.  The top of grate elevations will be more 

than 1 foot above the 100 year water surface elevation. 

4.  

a. The calculations have been revised to include the whole drainage shed area as woodlands in the pre 

development condition (with the exception of a small amount of meadow and impervious), and 

altered in the post development for impervious and lawn areas. 

b. The stormwater report has been revised to list the future impervious as part of the BMP inflow 

shed. 

c. The stormwater calculations have been revised to include altered Cw numbers for the 1-10 and 25-

100 design storms. 

5. The pre development study area Cw calculations have been revised to include 20% of the existing 

impervious coverage within the study are as meadow. 

6. A time of concentration path was calculated for the existing study area and found to be less than 5 minutes.  

We believe the assumption of 5 minutes for the post development shed is appropriate. 

7.   

a. The use of a level spreader has been added to the plan. 

b. Silt fence is shown on the detail for the topsoil pile.  Silt fence has also been added below the topsoil 

pile nearest the infiltration bed. 

c. The note has been revised to read “12-inch silt sock”, and it is noted that it is only to be installed if it 

is necessary. 

d. Silt sock is now shown above the proposed infiltration bed. 

e. Erosion control matting has been added to the plan. 

f. Silt sock has been added to the northern side of the construction entrance. 

g. Silt sock is shown on the entire downstream perimeter. 

8. Will comply. 

9. Will comply. 

D.  

1. The requested waivers have been corrected/updated 

2. Will comply once final approval is obtained. 

3. Will comply.  

Sincerely: 

Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC 

Brian K. Patterson, P.L.S. 



Page 1

MEMORANDUM

I. New Business

A. Nyce Minor Subdivision – 1017 N. Ridge Road

The Planning Commission made a motion to recommend approval of the following waivers:

1. §164-4 - A waiver from the requirement that a Minor Subdivision not include the need for an 
access easement.  Lot 1 fronts on North Ridge Road.  

2. §164-20.C – A waiver from the requirement that streets be constructed in accordance with the 
following requirement: Cartway width of 40 feet for Collector Streets.

3. §164-20.C & §164-26 – A waiver from the requirement that sidewalks be provided along both 
sides of all streets.

4. §164-20.C & §164-28 – A waiver from the requirement that curbs be provided along both sides 
of all streets.

5. §164-36.D – A waiver from the requirement that residential subdivisions or land development 
applications dedicate suitable open areas for recreation. 

6. §164-41.1.B.(3) – A waiver from the requirement of a forty-eight-inch-high wooden snow fence 
mounted on steel posts, located eight feet on center, placed along the boundary of the tree 
protection zone.   

The Planning Commission approved the motion 6-0.

A motion was made to recommend Minor Subdivision Plan approval subject to the following:

1. Compliance with the Gilmore & Associates engineering review letter dated September 18, 2023.
2. Compliance with the Gilmore & Associates planning review letter dated August 24, 2023.
3. Compliance with the Bucks County Planning Commission letter dated September 19, 2023.

 The Planning Commission approved the motion 6-0.

O:\MUNICIPL\0-999 Municipal General Services\9991013-PB_Perkasie Borough General Services\01-Perkasie Borough General 
Planning\PC Meetings\PC Summary Memos\PC Summary Memo 2023-09-28.docx

65 E. Butler Avenue, Ste 100
New Britain, PA 18901

(215) 345-4330
Fax (215) 345-8606

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Date:
   

September 28, 2023

To:
    

Andrea Coaxum, Perkasie Borough Manager

From: Stacy Yoder, AICP

cc:      
    

Debbie Sergeant, Borough Code Enforcement Administrator
Jeffrey P. Garton, Esq., Borough Solicitor
Megan McShane, Perkasie Borough
Doug Rossino, P.E., Borough Engineer
Linda Reid, Perkasie Borough

Reference:
   

September 27, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Summary
G&A Project No. 9991013



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
The Almshouse    Neshaminy Manor Center    1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, Pennsylvania 18901   215.345.3400   FAX 215.345.3886 
E-mail: planningcommission@buckscounty.org 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 
  

Edward J. Tokmajian, Chairman 
James E. Miller Jr., Vice Chairman 

James J. Keenan, Secretary 
 

Richard Donovan 
Thomas J. Jennings, Esq. 

Ann Marie Mitchell 
David R. Nyman 

Judith J. Reiss 
Tom Tosti 

 

Evan J. Stone 
Executive Director 

 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 

Robert J. Harvie Jr., Chair; Diane M. Ellis-Marseglia, LCSW, Vice Chair; Gene DiGirolamo, Secretary Visit  us at:  www.buckscounty.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Perkasie Borough Council 
  Perkasie Borough Planning Commission 
   
From:  Staff of the Bucks County Planning Commission 
 
Date:  September 19, 2023 
 
Subject: BCPC #12896 
 Final Plan of Minor Subdivision for Nyce 
  TMP #33-7-9 
  Applicant: Gregory and Malisa Nyce 
  Owner: Same 
  Plan Dated: August 18, 2023 
  Date Received: August 29, 2023 
 
This proposal has been reviewed by the Bucks County Planning Commission professional staff, which 
prepared the following comments in accordance with the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code 
(Section 502). 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Proposal: Subdivide a 3.0689-acre parcel into two lots of 1.6392 acres (Lot 1) and 1.4297 acres (Lot 2). Lot 

1 contains an existing single-family detached dwelling and associated accessory buildings. Lot 2 
contains a proposed single-family detached dwelling. The site is served by public water and sewer. 

 
Location: On the south side of North Ridge Road (PA 563), approximately 175 feet west of West Blooming 

Glen Road. 
 
Zoning: The R-1A Residential District permits single-family detached dwellings by right on a minimum lot 

size of 13,500 square feet and a minimum lot width of 90 feet. 
 
Present Use: Residential 
 
COMMENTS 
 
1. Requested waivers—The site plan and correspondence from the applicant’s surveyor, dated August 

18, 2023, indicates that the applicant is requesting waivers from the following subdivision and land 
development ordinance (SALDO) requirements: 

 

 
 



BCPC #12896 2  September 19, 2023 

 

Section 164-4 
to allow a minor subdivision to use an access easement; the applicant indicates that North Ridge Road 
is inaccessible to the lot due to the existing quarry pond and that an access easement is needed across 
Lot 2 
 

Sections 164-20.C. and 164-26 
to not require sidewalks along both sides of all streets; the applicant indicates that there are no 
sidewalks in the area 
 

Sections 164-20.C. and 164-28 
to not require curbs; the applicant indicates that there are no curbs in the area and that installing 
curbing could negatively affect the drainage patterns for downstream property owners 
 

Section 164-20.C. 
to not require widening North Ridge Road from 25 feet to the required 40 feet for a collector street; 
the applicant indicates that the minor subdivision will provide only minimal impact to the community 
with one additional dwelling 
 

Section 164-36.D. 
to not provide the required dedication of open areas for recreation; the applicant indicates that a fee 
in lieu of dedication of park and recreation land will be paid as provided for in Section 164-36.E.(1) 

 

The final plan should note all granted waivers.  
 
2. Shared driveway—The plan indicates a shared access easement is proposed between Lot 1 and Lot 2. 

We recommend that the plan indicate who will be responsible for maintaining the driveway because 
it is likely the lots will have different owners. In addition, the proposed access easement should outline 
maintenance responsibilities and should be incorporated in the deeds for each lot. 

 
3. Tree protection—Tree protection fencing should be provided for the existing trees to remain on Lot 

2 as required by Section 186-5 and Section 164-41.1. of the SALDO. Furthermore, the construction 
improvement plan (Sheet 3) shows grading within the tree protection zone of the existing trees on 
Lot 2. Section 164-41.1.A.(1) of the SALDO requires that grade changes shall not encroach upon the 
tree protection zone.  

 

This review will be included in the Bucks County Planning Commission board materials for the October 4, 
2023, meeting. It is not necessary for you to attend this meeting, but you are welcome to do so and to 
offer comments on the proposal to the BCPC board and staff. 
 
In order that we may be more aware of your concerns, please send us a copy of all municipal decisions 
sent to this applicant. 
 
MMW:tmr 
23-0269 
 
cc: Gregory A. and Malisa Ann Nyce (via email) 
 Brian K. Patterson, PLS, Bucks-Mont Surveying Services, LLC (via email) 
 Douglas Rossino, PE, Gilmore & Associates, Borough Engineer (via email) 
 Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager (via email) 
 Debbie Sergeant, Borough Code Enforcement Administrator (via email) 



 

65 E. Butler Avenue | Suite 100 | New Britain, PA 18901 Phone: 215-345-4330 | Fax: 215-345-8606 

www.gilmore-assoc.com 

 
September 18, 2023 
 
File No. 23-06078 
 
Debbie Sergeant 
Code Enforcement Administrator 
Borough of Perkasie 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA 18944 
 
Reference: Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan Review #1 
 1017 North Ridge Road 
 TMP #33-007-009 
  
Dear Debbie: 
 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. (G&A) has reviewed the Minor Subdivision Plan Submission Package for the 
above-referenced project.  We offer the following comments for consideration by the Borough: 
 
I. Submission 

 
A. Minor Subdivision Plans prepared for 1017 N. Ridge Road, as prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying 

Services, LLC, seven (7) sheets, dated August 18, 2023. 

B. Stormwater Management Report prepared for Gregory A. & Malisa Ann Nyce, as prepared by Lenape 
Valley Engineering, dated August 16, 2023. 

C. Waiver Request Letter for Nyce Minor Subdivision/Land Development, as prepared by Bux-Mont 
Surveying Services, LLC, dated August 18, 2023. 

D. Response Letter for Nyce Minor Subdivision/Land Development, as prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying 
Services, LLC, dated August 18, 2023. 

E. Sewage Facilities Planning Module Exception Mailer package for Nyce Property. 

F. Will Serve Letter for 1017 N. Ridge Rd, as prepared by the Perkasie Regional Authority, dated August 
4, 2023. 

G. Property Deed for TMP #33-007-009 dated August 4, 2021. 

H. Approval correspondence from Perkasie Fire Chief dated August 15, 2023. 

I. Letter of Assurance for Electric Service for 1017 N. Ridge Road, as prepared by Perkasie Borough 
Electric Department, dated August 8, 2023. 

J. Adjoining Property Owners Letter, as prepared by Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC, dated August 
18, 2023. 

K. “Adequate, with Comments” Letter for Nyce- Minor Subdivision, date of plan August 18, 2023, from 
the Bucks County Conservation District dated August 31, 2023. 

L. Borough of Perkasie Subdivision/Land Development Application dated August 21, 2023. 
 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 2 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                         September 18, 2023

 
 

II. General Information 
 

The subject property, located at 1017 North Ridge Road in Perkasie Borough, Bucks County, PA, consists 
of tax map parcel 33-007-009 and contains an area of 3.0689 acres (gross).  The site includes an existing 
dwelling with patio and deck, detached garage and shed, and an abandoned quarry pond.  The property 
was recently consolidated and then subdivided with the adjacent parcel (TMP #33-007-008) at the corner 
of North Ridge Road (S.R. 0563) and West Blooming Glen Drive and share a connecting driveway that 
has access to both roads.  The parcel is also bordered to the southeast by an unimproved 12-foot-wide 
paper alley.  The existing dwelling is served by public water and sewer. 
 
The Applicant and Owner of Record, Gregory A. and Malisa Ann Nyce, proposes to subdivide the parcel 
to create a new 1.4297 acre building lot with access to North Ridge Road (S.R. 0563).  The remainder of 
the parcel consisting of a 1.6392-acre lot will contain the existing dwelling, garage and shed with frontage 
on North Ridge Road which consists entirely of the existing pond.  Access for Lot 1 will be provided by the 
existing access easement through the property and TMP #33-007-008.  The site is zoned Single Family 
Residential (R-1A) Zoning District and the intended uses are “Single-Family Detached Dwelling” (B1), 
which is a use permitted by right in the R-1A Zoning District.  According to FEMA map 42017C0143J, 
dated March 16, 2015, the site is located in Zone “X”, which is outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.  
According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s National Wetlands Inventory, the 0.73-acre existing 
quarry is considered a freshwater pond.  The new building lot will be served by public water and sewer 
provided by the Perkasie Regional Authority (PRA).  The site is located within the East Branch Perkiomen 
Creek Watershed. 
 

III. Review Comments 
 

A. Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 186) 
 

We have identified the following issues in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance: 
 
1. §186-20.A.(2) – The minimum lot area shall exclude areas used for easements.  The ‘Zoning Data’ 

table lists the gross lot area for Lots 1 and 2.  The table also uses these areas to calculate the 
maximum lot coverage.  The lot area for Lots 1 and 2 should be revised to match the net lot area 
listed in the ‘Parcel Area Tabulation’ and the maximum lot coverage should be revised based on 
these areas. 
 

2. §186-54. – Buffering.  A 20-foot-wide Class C buffer should be provided along the property 
frontage of North Ridge Road.  We note that the previous subdivision used existing vegetation to 
provide this buffer and General Notes 17 on the Minor Subdivision Plan protects the existing 
vegetation used to provide this buffer.  The 20-foot buffer yard should be shown on the plan. 
 

B. Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (Chapter 164) 
 

We have identified the following issues in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Perkasie Borough Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO): 

 
1. The Applicant is requesting the following waivers with the accompanying justifications: 

a. §164-4. – A waiver from the requirement that a Minor Subdivision not include the need for an 
access easement.  Lot 1 fronts on North Ridge Road.  However, the roadway is inaccessible 
to this lot due to the existing quarry pond.  The subdivision requires the use of an easement 
across either Lot 2 to access North Ridge Road or across TMP #33-007-008 for access to 
West Blooming Glen Drive.  We note that this would occupy the same access easement 
available to TMP #33-007-008 for access to North Ridge Road created by the previous minor 
subdivision.  We have no objection to this waiver request. 

 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 3 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                         September 18, 2023

 
 

b. §164-20.C. – A waiver from the requirement that streets be constructed in accordance with the 
following requirement: Cartway width of 40 feet for Collector Streets.  North Ridge Road (S.R. 
0563) is classified as a Collector Street with an existing cartway width of approximately 25 
feet.  North Ridge Road is a state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would 
require a Highway Occupancy Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the 
previous minor subdivision, and we have no objection to this waiver request.  We also note 
that the Borough does not have the authority to waive the requirements of PennDOT. 

c. §164-20.C. & §164-26. – A waiver from the requirement that sidewalks be provided along both 
sides of all streets, except in the opinion of the Borough Council with the advice of the 
Planning Commission that they are unnecessary for the public safety and convenience, and 
that sidewalks be constructed on one side of all frontage streets and both sides of all other 
streets within the subdivision in accordance with §164-51.A.  As noted above, North Ridge 
Road is a state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would require a Highway 
Occupancy Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the previous minor 
subdivision, and we have no objection to this waiver request since there are no sidewalks 
along the road in the vicinity of the project. 

d. §164-20.C. & §164-28. – A waiver from the requirement that curbs be provided along both 
sides of all streets, unless in the opinion of Borough Council with the advice of the Borough 
Engineer that they are unnecessary, and that curbs be constructed along the existing street on 
which a subdivision or land development abuts in accordance with §164-52.B.  As noted 
above, North Ridge Road is a state road and any improvements within the right-of-way would 
require a Highway Occupancy Permit.  We note that this waiver was granted as part of the 
previous minor subdivision, and we have no objection to this waiver request since there are no 
curbs along the road in the vicinity of the project. 

e. §164-36.D. – A waiver from the requirement that residential subdivisions or land development 
applications dedicate suitable open areas for recreation.  For each residential dwelling unit, a 
minimum of 1,500 square feet of land shall be dedicated for recreation space.  We have no 
objection to this waiver request conditioned upon the Applicant providing $1,500.00 for the 
new dwelling unit payable at the time of the building permit in accordance with §164-36.E.(1). 

 
2. §164-30.G. – House numbers shall be assigned in accordance with Borough requirements.  The 

house number for the new dwelling on Lot 2 should be added to the Minor Subdivision Plan prior 
to final recording of the plan. 

 
3. §164-31. – The following issues related to grading should be addressed: 

a. The flow paths on either side of the dwelling are intended to direct runoff towards the trench 
for the infiltration bed.  However, the proposed 549 contour on either side of the bed will direct 
runoff around the trench.  The grading should be revised and spot elevations provided as 
necessary to clarify the swale towards the trench. 

b. The location of the walk out basement access and sump pump discharge should be noted on 
the plans. 

c. A low point spot elevation should be provided in the driveway between the proposed 558 
contours. 

d. Based on the proposed contours, the last five (5) feet of the basin discharge pipe will be 
exposed.  We recommend the grading be revised to provide a minimum of one (1) foot of 
cover over this pipe. 

 
4. §164-32. – Access and utility easements are provided across the subject property and TMP #33-

007-008 for access and utilities.  These easements and easement agreements should be revised 
as necessary based on the proposed subdivision. 
 

 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 4 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                         September 18, 2023

 
 

5. §164-41.1.B.(3) – A forty-eight-inch-high wooden snow fence mounted on steel posts, located 
eight feet on center, shall be placed along the boundary of the tree protection zone.  The tree 
protection zone should be designated on the plan and tree protection fence should be provided 
along the limits of disturbance adjacent to the woodlands to remain.  

 
6. §164-50.A. – Monuments shall be placed at each change in direction of boundary.  It should be 

noted on the Minor Subdivision Plan that the monuments shall be installed prior to recording of the 
plan and a monumentation certification shall be provided to the Borough. 

 
7. §164-54.A & B. – Review and approval by the Perkasie Regional Authority (PRA) should be 

obtained by the Applicant for the proposed water service and sanitary lateral connection to Lot 2.  
A copy of the approval letter should be submitted to the Borough and our Office. 

 
8. §164-69. – The following information and/or clarifications should be added to the Minor 

Subdivision Plan: 

a. The Bucks County Planning Commission no longer signs plans.  The signature line for the 
BCPC Executive Director should be removed. 

b. The right-of-way and cartway widths of North Ridge Road (S.R. 0563) should be dimensioned 
on the plan. 

c. The location of the proposed structures on Lot 2 should be shown with the building set back 
distances dimensioned. 

d. The building setback dimensions from the existing structures on Lot 1 to the proposed lot line 
should be dimensioned. 

e. The property boundary distance along the southern property line for Lots 1 and 2 should be 
provided. 

f. The distance of the dividing lot line between Lots 1 and 2 from a property corner to the existing 
sanitary sewer easement should be provided.  

g. The distance of the dividing lot line between Lots 1 and 2 from a property corner to the existing 
access easement should be provided.  

h. Distances along the dividing lot line between Lots 1 and 2 where it crosses through the access 
easement should be provided. 

 
9. §164-69.D.(5) – A copy of the Sewage Facilities Planning Module exception mailer has been 

submitted to the Borough for review.  A copy of the approved Sewage Facilities Planning 
exception should be provided to the Borough and our Office. 
 

10. §164-69.D.(6) – An indication of the available water volume for fire flow and the water volume 
required to satisfy the Insurance Services Office (ISO) standards for fire protection should be 
provided in a letter. 
 

C. Stormwater Management (Chapter 158) 
 

We have identified the following issues in regards to the requirements and provisions of the current 
Amended Stormwater Management Ordinance: 
 
1. §158-12.M. – Areas of existing sheet flow discharge shall be maintained wherever possible. If 

sheet flow is proposed to be concentrated and discharged onto adjacent property, the developer 
must document that adequate downstream conveyance facilities exist to safely transport the 
concentrated discharge, or otherwise prove that no erosion, sedimentation, flooding or other harm 
will result from the concentrated discharge.  The discharge from the proposed infiltration bed 
creates a concentrates discharge downslope towards Parcel 33-007-021 (Strawser property).  
These flows should be dissipated prior to crossing the property line and the Applicant should also 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 5 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                         September 18, 2023

 
 

submit written approval from the affected adjacent property owner.  We recommend that a level 
spreader be provided for the bed discharge a minimum of five (5) feet from the property line in 
order to disperse the concentrated flow. 
 

2. §158-15.E. – All Applicants are required to perform a detailed soils evaluation of the project site by 
a qualified geotechnical engineer, geologist and/or soil scientist.  The stormwater report 
references the stormwater infiltration report used for the infiltration bed in the previous minor 
subdivision on TMP# 33-007-008.  We note that the soil type at the proposed infiltration bed 
location is the same as the soil on the adjacent parcel. However, the original tests were completed 
at grade and the proposed bed is approximately 1.5 feet below existing grade.  Also, the proposed 
bed is located 375 feet from the original test pit locations.  Infiltration tests should be provided at 
the location and depth of the proposed infiltration bed on Lot 2. 
 

3. §158-18.I.(1)(d) – Underground infiltration basins and BMPs shall have positive overflow controls 
to prevent storage within one foot of the finished surface over the basin.  The 100-year 
Hydrograph Summary lists a maximum elevation of 547.48 for the stormwater bed with a trench 
elevation of 548.00.  The bed design should be revised to provide the required one foot of 
coverage over the maximum storage elevation. 

 
4. §158-19.D. – The following issues related to the runoff coefficient calculations should be 

addressed: 

a. The pre-development runoff coefficients list an area of 0.81 acres of meadow.  This is not 
consistent with the natural resource protection table which notes 0.4188 acres of woodlands 
disturbance.  The weighted pre-development runoff coefficient should be revised to include 
this woodlands disturbance. 

b. The Stormwater Notes on Sheet 3 indicate that the stormwater facility has been designed to 
accommodate up to 1,000 square feet of new impervious in the bypass drainage shed.  This is 
not consistent with the runoff coefficient calculations provided in the report which only include 
an impervious area of 0.01 acres (436 s.f.).  Also, the note is not consistent with the 
Impervious Coverage table which lists 765 square feet of “Future Impervious”.  The amount of 
future impervious included in the design should be clarified and the runoff coefficients should 
be revised as necessary. 

c. The rational method runoff coefficients should be revised to use separate values for storms 
less than the 25-year storm and for the 25 to 100-year storms. 

   
5. §158-19.G. – Twenty percent of existing impervious area, when present, shall be considered 

meadow in good condition in the model for existing conditions.  The runoff coefficient calculations 
for the pre-development area include an existing impervious area of 0.06 acres.  This existing 
impervious should be revised to include the 20% conversion. 
 

6. §158-19.K. – The stormwater report uses a time of concentration of 5 minutes for both the pre and 
post development conditions.  The time of concentration path should be shown on the plan and 
calculations provided to verify the use of the minimum time. 
 

7. §158-20.B. – We note that the Applicant received an Adequacy Letter from the BCCD.  However, 
we offer the following comments regarding the current erosion and sedimentation control design: 

a. A rip rap apron should be provided at the basin discharge pipe unless a level spreader is 
proposed. 

b. Silt fence should be provided around the topsoil stockpile. 

c. The Earthwork Staging notes specify 33” super silt fence must be installed in the vicinity of the 
infiltration area to prevent sediment contamination.  The location of this fence should be 
shown on the plans. 



Debbie Sergeant, Code Enforcement Administrator         Page 6 
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan                         September 18, 2023

 
 

d. Silt sock or some other form of protection should be provided upslope of the exposed trench in 
the infiltration bed to prevent sediment from clogging the stone during construction. 

e. Erosion control matting is recommended in the swales on either side of the dwelling to prevent 
channels forming before mature grass growth is established. 

f. Silt sock should be provided on the northern side of the construction entrance to prevent 
sediment runoff into the existing pond. 

g. The silt sock should be extended to include the total disturbance area for the water and 
sanitary service connections. 

 
8. §158-20.D. – We note that an “Adequate, with Comments” letter has been issued by the Bucks 

County Conservation District.  Once the plans have been approved by the Borough, an updated 
adequacy letter noting the most recent plan revision date should be obtained from the 
Conservation District. 
 

9. §158-40.A. – Prior to final approval of the site’s Stormwater Management Site Plan, the Applicant 
shall sign and record a Stormwater Facilities Maintenance and Monitoring Agreement prepared 
and approved by the Borough Solicitor covering all stormwater control facilities that are to be 
privately owned. 

 

D. General Comments 
 

1. The ‘Waivers Requested’ on Sheet 1 should be revised to be consistent with the waiver request 
letter provided in the submission package. 
 

2. A legal description for each lot, as well as any easements should be provided to the Borough for 
review and approval prior to final plan recording. 

 
3. The Applicant is responsible for any other required approvals, permits, etc. (i.e., Perkasie 

Regional Authority, etc.).  Copies of these permits and approvals should be submitted to the 
Borough. 

 
We recommend that the plans be revised to address the above comments to the satisfaction of the Borough. 
Considering the extent of the required plan revisions identified in this letter, we may have additional 
comments relating to compliance with the Borough Ordinances upon resubmission by the Applicant.  In order 
to help expedite the review process of the resubmission of the plans, the Applicant should submit a response 
letter which addresses each of the above comments.  Changes that have been made to the application that 
are unrelated to the review comments should also be identified in the response letter. If you have any 
questions regarding the above, please contact this office. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Douglas C. Rossino, P.E. 
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
Borough Engineers 
 
DCR/tw 
cc: Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager 
 Megan McShane, Executive Assistant 
 Jeffrey P. Garton, Esq., Borough Solicitor 
 Nicholas Fretz, Manager, Perkasie Regional Authority 
 Gregory A. & Malisa Ann Nyce, Owner/Applicant 
 Brian K. Patterson, P.L.S., Bux-Mont Surveying Services, LLC 
 Erik Garton, P.E., E.V.P., Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 



Gilmore & Associates, Inc.
Building on a Foundation of Excellence

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Gilmore & Associates, Inc.
Building on a Foundation of Excellence

Gilmore & Associates, Inc.
Building on a Foundation of Excellence

Gilmore & Associates, Inc.
Building on a Foundation of Excellence

65 East Butler Avenue│Suite 100│New Britain, PA 18901│Phone: 215-345-4330│Fax: 215-345-8606

August 24, 2023

File No. 2023-06078.01

Debbie Sergeant
Code Enforcement Administrator
Borough of Perkasie
620 West Chestnut Street, P.O. Box 96
Perkasie, PA 18944

Reference: Minor Subdivision– Planning Review
Nyce Minor Subdivision
Tax Map Parcel Number: 33-007-009

Dear Ms. Sergeant:

Please be advised that we have reviewed the Sketch Plan for Nyce Minor Subdivision prepared by Bux-Mont 
Surveying Services, LLC dated August 18, 2023.

Background Information Summary
Application Title: Nyce Minor Subdivision
Plan Stage: Minor Subdivision Plan
Applicant: Gregory and Malisa Ann Nyce
Plan Date: August 18, 2023
Location: 1017 N. Ridge Road
Total Site Area: 3 +/- Acres – Gross
Zoning District: R-1A Zoning District

The property, consisting of TMP No. 33-007-009, is approximately 3 acres and contains an existing dwelling along 
with associated accessory structures. The plans propose to subdivide the parcel into two lots. Lot 1 will be 1.6 acres 
and will contain the existing dwelling. Lot 2 will be 1.4 acres. The plans propose to construct a single-family dwelling 
on Lot 2. Both lots will have access from an existing shared driveway off Ridge Road.  

We offer the following comments for your consideration:

1. Use

a. As per ZO Section 186-20.A(1)(a), a single-family detached dwelling is permitted by right in the R-1A 
Residential Zoning District.

2. Existing Conditions and Surrounding Land Uses

a. The site is currently occupied by a single-family detached dwelling. According to the Comprehensive 
Plan Land Use Map it is surrounded by vacant land and residential uses.

b. The site is located in the R-1A Residential Zoning District and has frontage along Ridge Road.

3. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

a. As per the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, the site is designated Low Density 
Residential. The Low Density Residential category comprises single-family detached dwellings and is 
generally separate from incompatible land uses. The purpose of this land use category is to retain a lower 
density character. The proposed use is generally consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.



Debbie Sergeant, Perkasie Borough Page 2
Nyce Minor Subdivision Plan August 24, 2023

Building on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Building on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Building on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Building on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Building on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

Building on a Foundation of ExcellenceBuilding on a Foundation of ExcellenceBuilding on a Foundation of ExcellenceBuilding on a Foundation of Excellence

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

www.gilmore-assoc.com

340 E. Maple Avenue, Suite 302, Langhorne, PA 19047 • 215-369-3955 • 215-369-3956

4. Traffic and Pedestrian Circulation Patterns

a. The property is accessed by an existing shared driveway which connects Ridge Road and Blooming 
Glen Road. 

b. There are no existing pedestrian paths or sidewalks along Ridge Road. However, it should be noted that 
one of the guiding principles of the Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan is to “enhance the borough’s 
transportation system to accommodate vehicular and pedestrian traffic in a safe and efficient manner…” 
(page 166). Additionally, the 2010 Perkasie Borough Open Space Plan recommends the Borough 
continue to provide links toward developing a comprehensive trail network. This includes providing 
sidewalk connections (page 8).

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Judith Stern Goldstein, R.L.A., ASLA Stacy Yoder, AICP
Senior Project Manager Community Planner
Gilmore & Associates, Inc. Gilmore & Associates, Inc.

JSG/sjy/sl

cc: Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager
Megan McShane, Executive Secretary
Jeffrey P. Garton, Esq., Borough Solicitor
Gregory and Malisa Ann Nyce
Brian K. Patterson, P.L.S.







7

Local Share Account | Statewide Guidelines 
07/19/2023

Appendix I � Authorized Official Resolution
Be it RESOLVED, that the Borough of Perkasie (Name of Applicant) of Bucks County (Name of County) 
hereby requests a Statewide Local Share Assessment grant of $297,904.20 from the Commonwealth 
Financing Authority to be used for new body cameras and new in-car cameras for the Police Department. 

Be it FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Applicant does hereby designate James Ryder, Council President 
(Name and Title) and Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary (Name and Title) as the official(s) to execute all 
documents and agreements between the Borough of Perkasie (Name of Applicant) and the Commonwealth 
Financing Authority to facilitate and assist in obtaining the requested grant. 

I, Andrea L. Coaxum, duly qualified Secretary of the Borough of Perkasie (Name of Applicant), (Name of 
County) Bucks County, PA, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly adopted by a majority vote of the Perkasie Borough Council (Governing Body) at a regular meeting 
held November 6, 2023 (Date) and said Resolution has been recorded in the Minutes of the Borough of 

Perkasie (Applicant) and remains in effect as of this date. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix my hand and attach the seal of the Borough of Perkasie (Applicant), this 
6th day of November, 2023. 

Borough of Perkasie 
Name of Applicant 

Bucks County 
County 

____________________________________________ 
Secretary

    Perkasie Borough            
   Resolution 2023-53



1

Admin

From: rschurr perkasiepd.org <rschurr@perkasiepd.org>
Sent: Monday, October 30, 2023 10:38 AM
To: Andrea Coaxum; Jeff Hollenbach; Admin
Cc: Admin
Subject: Grant Resolution
Attachments: PERKASIE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT BODY CAMERA (1).docx

All, 
 
I have  completed an applica on for a grant through the DCED LSA to purchase new body cameras and new in car 
cameras.  Our current systems are almost six years old. Body Camera life spans are three years and in car cameras are 
five years. Currently we are not having any real issues our equipment but as they age out at the end of their life cycle we 
should look at replacements. Currently we are using a system called WatchGuard. Should we receive grant funding I 
would like to purchase AXON Enterprise Cameras. The grant amount is $297,904.20. 
 
With Axon at the end of the warranty period Axon will replace all of their equipment with brand new equipment for 
free. 
 
Megan is preparing a Resolu on as part of the applica on. If Council approves the resolu on I would electronically 
submit the grant before the deadline. I currently have a le er of support from Shelby Labs and once the resolu on is 
approved I will have one from Jarre  Coleman. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Bob 
 
Robert A. Schurr, M.S. 
Chief of Police 
Perkasie Borough Police Department 
311 S 9th St, Perkasie PA 18944 
215-257-6876 

 
 
This e-mail transmission and any documents, files or previous e-mail messages attached to it, are confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, 
or a person responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, disclosure, copying, dissemination, 
distribution or use of any of the information contained in, or attached to this e-mail transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this 
transmission in error, please immediately notify me by forwarding this e-mail to chief@perkasiepd.org, or by telephone at (215) 257-6876 and then 
delete the message and its attachments from your computer. 



PERKASIE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT BODY CAMERA/IN-CAR-CAMERA 
ACQUISTION PROJECT 

 

A. Project Description 

The Perkasie Borough Police Department provides police services to approximately 
9,120 residents in Perkasie and approximately 4,567 residents in Sellersville Borough 
through a contracted police services agreement for a total service population of 13,687 
residents.  

The overall goal of the project is to raise police performance levels and accountability 
with the implementation of a body-worn camera program. The goal is broken down into 
the following project objectives: 

1. The Perkasie Borough Police Department policy for body-worn/in car camera 
systems complies with all Department of Justice requirements and is compliant 
with Pennsylvania Law Enforcement Accreditation Commission guidelines. All 
officers will be re-trained on the policy prior to implementation of the Axon body-
worn/in car camera and the policy will be reviewed and updated as necessary. 
 

2. Evaluation and upgrade of existing technology infrastructure to support a body-
worn camera program.  
 
The department currently has an IT firm that will evaluate and work with the 
department to upgrade any existing technology and servers based on the 
recommendations and requirements of body-worn/in car camera vendors and 
lessons learned froth other agencies who have implemented body-worn/in ca 
cameras as it specifically relates to Axon Enterprise, Inc. This will aid in a 
seamless implementation of the program by verifying technology and that the 
necessary storage is in place. 
 
 

3. The Perkasie Borough Police Department has conducted research and 
procurement requirements for body-worn/in car cameras. Most recently the 
Pennsylvania State Police have completed testing and Evaluation of body worn/in 
car camera systems and have selected Axon Enterprise, Inc. The purchase of 
body-worn/in car cameras will be done in accordance with all Federal, State, and 
local procurement policies. The purchase of the Axon cameras will be done 
through a nationwide cooperative purchasing agreement called SOURCEWELL. 



Additionally, Axon Enterprise, Inc is working on renewing their membership in 
the state cooperative purchasing system COSTARS.  
 

4. The Perkasie Borough Police Department will conduct training for all police 
department personnel on the body-worn/in car camera program. Prior to 
deployment of body-worn/in car cameras, all department personnel will be 
properly trained by department leadership and the manufacturer in accordance 
with established policy on the operation of body-worn/in car cameras. Policies 
will be reviewed annually and updated as needed. 
 
 

5. The Perkasie Police Department will evaluate the impact that body-worn/in car 
cameras have on police performance, efficiency, accountability, and 
transparency. This assessment will be an ongoing process overseen by 
department leadership with the review of video and community feedback.  
 
 

B. Location of the Project Site 

The body camera/in car camera site location will be the Boroughs of Perkasie and 
Sellersville in Upper Bucks County, Pennsylvania serving a residential population of 
13,687 residents in a total geographic land area of 3.73 square miles. 

 

C. Priority Investment and Community Impact 
 

Increased police accountability and transparency is already a part of the Perkasie 
Borough Police Department’s Policing Strategy. This goal will be further enhanced with 
the addition of new/updated body-worn/in car cameras. Department leadership will be 
able to evaluate the performance of officers during their interactions with the 
community. Citizen’s complaints will be able to be easily investigated. Video and audio 
recordings will be used to evaluate how calls may be handled better during critical 
incidents or hostile interactions. 

Community engagement is also a core principle of the Perkasie Borough Police 
Department’s Policing Strategy. The department will be able to provide and release as 
appropriate examples of positive interactions with the community further building trust. 
The police department will utilize its social media platform, Crimewatch, to continually 
promote the police department and gain feedback. The department will promote the 
use of body-worn/in car cameras at community events such as Coffee with a Cop, 



elementary and private school presentations, and a multitude of Borough sponsored 
events. 

The collection of body-worn/in car camera recordings will provide for improved 
adjudication of criminal cases. Officers will have real time video to support their 
statements that will aid in prosecution of cases. With such reliable evidence these cases 
may be adjudicated at the lowest level and the department will work diligently with the 
local District Court to resolve cases with the least impact to everyone involved. The 
police department will work closely with the Bucks County District Attorney’s Office and 
Bucks County Detectives to ensure the successful use of video and audio to ensure the 
appropriate adjudication of cases. 

The utilization of grant funds to implement body-worn/in car cameras will result in the 
Perkasie Borough Police Department’s ability to be even more transparent, add an 
additional resource to investigating and prosecuting crimes, better analysis of critical 
incidents, and further strengthen trust with the community. The Perkasie Borough 
Police Department is a data driven organization. The collection and analysis of data 
drives operations and the deployment of resources to make sure the police department 
is best serving the community. 

To measure the effectiveness of body-worn cameras, the police department will 
conduct a comparison of the following items prior to the grant funding versus after the 
grant funding: 

 Citizen complaints. 
 Use of force incidents. 
 Community satisfaction to include increased social media activity by posted 

activity (crime information, community engagement, and informational posts). 
 Success rate of successful adjudication and at what level of the criminal justice 

system. 
 Officer performance of engaging in the department’s policing strategy. 

 

The police department will utilize its records management system (RMS) to document 
all interactions with the community to include the use of body-worn/in car cameras and 
their impact on the interaction or investigation. Sworn personnel are required to enter 
all activity into the RMS. The leadership of the department and civilian staff can obtain 
reports that are analyzed monthly or more frequently as necessary. Utilizing the police 
departments RMS will provide historical data to facilitate comparisons and evaluate 
performance and progression.  



The Perkasie Borough Police Department is committed to working with DCED to 
document policy development processes, address other technical and training issues, 
and provide accurate and timely updates regarding progress in training, body-worn 
camera implementation, and program development. Perkasie Borough has personnel 
appointed to oversee Federal and State grants. These personnel are registered and 
have access to the necessary online platforms to respond to requests, submit necessary 
reports, and manage all grant funding for the Police Department. 

In addition, the Perkasie Borough Police Department will require regular departmental 
review of body-worn/in car camera digital footage to advance training, gain feedback, 
and access policy revisions in ways that can enhance officer safety as well as service to 
the community.  

The Perkasie Borough Police Department is willing to cooperate fully with DCED grant 
administration requirements including requisite data should funding be awarded. 

 

D. Estimated Start and End Date 

     

If approved and funding is received the Perkasie Borough Police Department would 
submit a purchase order to Axon Enterprise, Inc to make the equipment purchase. It is 
anticipated that once the order is placed equipment would be received, installed and 
officers would be trained within 90 days.  

 

The Perkasie Borough Police Department thanks the evaluators for their time and 
consideration in reviewing our application for grant funding. 



  

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-54 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE RETURN OF THE REMAINDER OF THE ESCROW 
FOR THE HANOVER HOUSE  PROJECT LOCATED AT 900 N. RIDGE 
ROAD, AND AUTHORIZING THE SIGNATURE OF THE BOROUGH 
MANAGER ON THE ESCROW RELEASE 

  
WHEREAS, HG Properties 20, LP (“Applicant”) made an escrow deposit with the 

Borough of Perkasie related to the Hanover House project located at 900 N. Ridge Road, Perkasie, 

Pennsylvania, also known as Bucks County Tax Parcel 33-006-116; and 

WHEREAS, Applicant has completed the project and requests that the remainder of their 

escrow deposit be returned to them; and 

WHEREAS, Gilmore & Associates, Inc. has provided the Borough of Perkasie with an 

Escrow Release Confirmation authorizing the release of the escrow upon confirmation by the 

Borough that there are no outstanding or forthcoming bills regarding the Hanover House project. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Perkasie, as 

follows, that the remainder of the escrow deposit for the Applicant’s Hanover House project, shall 

be returned to the Applicant. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Borough Manager is hereby authorized to sign 

the Escrow Release to the Applicant. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Perkasie 

Borough on the 6th day of November, 2023. 

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      By: ________________________________ 
        James Ryder, Council President 
 
 
By: ________________________________       
           Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary  





O:\MUNICIPL\2021\2104063-PB_900 N. Ridge Road\Engineer Confirmation.doc 

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

 

620 W. Chestnut St       (215)257-5065 

P.O. Box 96            Fax (215)257-6875 

Perkasie, PA 18944 

 

 

Escrow Release Confirmation 

 

       

Date: October 11, 2023 

 

Perkasie Borough 

620 W. Chestnut St. 

P.O. Box 96 

Perkasie, PA 18944 

 

Re: Escrow Account Release 

 

I Douglas C. Rossino of Gilmore & Associates Inc. confirm there are no outstanding or forthcoming bills in 

reference to the project known as 900 N. Ridge Road and authorize release upon confirmation by the 

Borough. 

        

Sincerely, 

 

 
       ________________________________ 

       Borough Engineer Signature    

 

 



 

  

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-55  

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF 
PERKASIE APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE AND DELAWARE VALLEY 
PROPERTY & LIABILITY TRUST (DVPLT) FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF SECURITY TRAINING SERVICES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE BOROUGH MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE BOROUGH OF 
PERKASIE 

 
 WHEREAS, Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (DVPLT) has provided the 

Borough of Perkasie with an Agreement regarding security training services for the price of $0.00; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Borough Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the 

Borough to approve the Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (DVPLT), Agreement for 

security training services pursuant to an Agreement, and;  

THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Borough Council of Perkasie Borough as follows: 

1. Approval of Agreement. The Borough Council herein approves the Agreement 

between the Borough and Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (DVPLT), which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference. 

2. Execution. The Borough Council further authorizes the Borough Manager to execute 

the Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (DVPLT) Agreement between the Borough and 

Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (DVPLT), on behalf of Perkasie Borough. 

THIS RESOLUTION was duly adopted this 6th day of November, 2023. 

ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF PERKASIE: 

 

By:       By:                                                        
     Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary         James Ryder, Council President 
 



 

  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
       



-1- 

 

SECURITY TRAINING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Security Training Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made on __________________  (“Effective 
Date”) by and between the Delaware Valley Property & Liability Trust (“DVPLT”), a nonprofit public 
entity risk pool that provides comprehensive property and liability coverages to its public entity 
participants pursuant to the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Law and the Pennsylvania 
Political Subdivision Tort Claims Act, and _____________________________________________  
(“Municipality”), a local government agency organized under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania that is a participant in DVPLT. 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize the importance of educating and training the Municipality’s employees 
on potential security threats and phishing resistance; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein set forth, DVPLT 
and Municipality (each a “Party” and together the “Parties”) hereby agree to enter into this Agreement 
and in so doing, agree to be legally bound as follows: 

1. Description of Services.   

(a) DVPLT will provide Municipality with access to BullPhish ID, a cloud-based security 
awareness training and phishing resistance program, which includes training videos and 
phishing simulation campaigns (the “Services”). 
 

(b) These Services will be provided to the Municipality free of charge. 
 

(c) DVPLT reserves the right to change or discontinue any or all of the Services from time to 
time.  DVPLT shall notify the Municipality in writing of any material change to or 
discontinuation of the Services. 

 
2. Term and Termination.  This Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date set forth 

above and remain in effect until it expires upon the effective date of the withdrawal or 
expulsion of the Municipality from the DVPLT. Without limiting the foregoing, either Party 
may terminate the Agreement by providing written notice to the other Party.  
 

3. Municipality Responsibilities.   
 
(a) The Municipality shall be responsible for configuring and deploying the Services. 

 
(b) The Municipality is responsible for all activities that occur under its account, regardless 

of whether the activities are authorized by the Municipality, undertaken by it, its 
employees or a third party, and understands and agrees that DVPLT is not responsible for 
unauthorized access to its account. 
 

(c) The Municipality is solely responsible for its use of the Services. The Municipality will 
ensure its use of the Services will not violate any applicable law.  
 

4. Limited Warranty, Disclaimer and Liability Limitation.   
 



-2- 

 

(a) The Services provided under this Agreement are provided “as is”.  Except to the extent 
prohibited by law, or to the extent any statutory rights apply that cannot be excluded, 
limited or waived, DVPLT (i) makes no guarantees, representations or warranties of any 
kind, whether express or implied, statutory or otherwise regarding the Services; and (ii) 
disclaims all warranties, including any implied or express warranties (a) of 
merchantability, satisfactory quality, fitness for a particular purpose, (b) arising out of any 
course of dealing or usage of trade, and (c) that the Services will be uninterrupted, error-
free or free of harmful components.   
 

(b) DVPLT shall not be liable to the Municipality as a result of any action or omission of the 
Municipality or any third party or relating to the Services, and DVPLT hereby expressly 
disclaims any such liability.   

 
(c) In no event shall DVPLT be liable to the Municipality or any third party for any incidental, 

special, punitive or consequential losses or damages of any kind arising in contract, tort 
or otherwise, even if DVPLT has been advised of the possibility of such damages.   

 
(d) The liability of DVPLT to the Municipality for any acts or omissions by DVPLT shall be 

absolutely limited to no more than a total of $1,000 for any and all losses, liability, claims 
or expenses (including legal fees) incurred by the Municipality arising directly or 
indirectly from the provision of the Services by DVPLT to the Municipality under this 
Agreement. 

 
5. Independent Contractor Status.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that DVPLT is an 

independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement shall be regarded as creating any other 
legal relationship between the Parties whether as principal/agent, employer/employee or 
otherwise. 
 

6. Governing Law.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.     
 

7. Cooperation.  The Parties hereby agree that they will use their best efforts to resolve any 
disputes regarding their performance under this Agreement in good faith and will cooperate 
fully in the resolution of such disputes.  Each Party will designate a representative who shall 
act on behalf of that Party in resolving any disputes arising from the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Arbitration.  Disputes arising on the performance of this Agreement which are not resolved 

by agreement of the Parties shall be subject to common law arbitration under 42 Pa. C.S.A. 
§7341 without any right of appeal to any court of competent jurisdiction.  The Parties further 
agree that all such disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved exclusively by 
arbitration and they hereby waive and relinquish any right they otherwise may have to file suit 
in any court of competent jurisdiction, except where the aggrieved Party is seeking to obtain 
equitable relief of any kind, including any preliminary or permanent injunctions or temporary 
restraining orders.  In resolving any disputes under this provision, the Parties hereby agree to 
bear their own legal fees and costs. 

 



-3- 

 

9. Limitation on Use.  Municipality shall use the Services solely for training and providing 
security awareness to its employees. Municipality shall not sell, transfer or sublicense the 
Services to any other entity or person. 

 
10. Entire Agreement.  This is the entire Agreement between the Parties, and there are no other 

agreements, understandings, or representations.   
 
11. Amendments and Assignments.  This Agreement shall only be amended, modified, changed 

or extended upon a written agreement by the Parties which shall state the amendment, 
modification or change and its effective date.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by either 
Party unless such assignment is mutually agreed to by both Parties in writing. Any assignment 
in violation of this Agreement shall be deemed null and void. 

 
12. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on all successors and permitted 

assigns of the Parties hereto. 
 
13. Notifications.  Any correspondence or notifications by or between the Parties required by this 

Agreement shall be address to the following, respectively:  
 

FOR DVPLT: Neil McGarry 
Director of Information Technology 
719 Dresher Road 
Horsham, PA  19044-2205 
nmcgarry@dvtrusts.com  

  
FOR MUNICIPALITY: Contact Name: 

Title: 
Address: 
Address: 
Email: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, intending to be legally bound, the Parties hereto, by their duly authorized 
representatives, have accepted and executed this Security Training Services Agreement as of the day and 
year first below written. 

FOR DVPLT FOR THE MUNICIPALITY 

Signed: Signed: 

Printed Name: Printed Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

 

mailto:nmcgarry@dvtrusts.com






















ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Richard B. Millham Jr., CIC

THECR-1 OP ID: BS

10/16/2023

Richard B. Millham Jr., CIC
Millham Companies Inc.
301 S. Main St. Ste. 1 E
Doylestown, PA 18901
Richard B. Millham Jr., CIC

215-345-8110 215-345-9337

Fidelity and Guaranty Ins Co.

The Craftery LLC
123 N. Main Street, #107
Dublin, PA 18917

A X 2,000,000

X X BIP7R753602-22-42 12/22/2022 12/22/2023 300,000

5,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

X 4,000,000

1,000,000A

BIP-7R753602-22-42 12/22/2022 12/22/2023

X

RE: The Craftery Market in Downtown Perkasie, Saturday, November 18th,      
10am-4pm.                                                                   
Perkasie Borough is named as Additional Insured as per policy forms and     
endorsements, per written contract agreement.                               

PERKA-2

Perkasie Borough
620 W. Chestnut Street
Perkasie, PA 18944

215-345-8110

25615



1

Admin

From: Admin
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2023 1:45 PM
To: Richard Dunbar
Cc: Chief 26; Linda Reid
Subject: Request for Fire Police - 11/18/23

Thank you for getting back to me so quickly, Rick! 
 
We’ll put this on the November 6th Council agenda for approval. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Megan 
 

From: Richard Dunbar <rdunbar@perkasiefire.org>  
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2023 1:44 PM 
To: Admin <admin@perkasieborough.org> 
Cc: Chief 26 <chief@perkasiefire.org>; Linda Reid <Community@perkasieborough.org> 
Subject: Re: Request for Fire Police - 11/18/23 
 
Megan - we have coverage for the event and will be there as requested on 11/18 from 10 - 4.   
 
Happy to help! 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Admin <admin@perkasieborough.org> 
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2023 7:51:05 AM 
To: Richard Dunbar <rdunbar@perkasiefire.org> 
Cc: Chief 26 <chief@perkasiefire.org>; Linda Reid <Community@perkasieborough.org> 
Subject: Request for Fire Police - 11/18/23  
  
Thank you, Rick.  I appreciate it! 
 
Sincerely, 
  
Megan 
  

From: Richard Dunbar <rdunbar@perkasiefire.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2023 5:09 PM 
To: Admin <admin@perkasieborough.org> 



2

Cc: Chief 26 <chief@perkasiefire.org>; Linda Reid <Community@perkasieborough.org> 
Subject: Re: Request for Fire Police - 11/18/23 
  
Hi Megan, 
  
I will check and see if we would have Fire Police available for that event.   I’m fairly certain we will be able to support it 
and will confirm back to you as soon as I can.   
  
Best regards,  
  
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Admin <admin@perkasieborough.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2023 1:44:41 PM 
To: rdunbar@perkasiefire.org <rdunbar@perkasiefire.org> 
Cc: Chief 26 <chief@perkasiefire.org>; Linda Reid <Community@perkasieborough.org> 
Subject: Request for Fire Police - 11/18/23  
  
Hello Rick! 
  
The Borough received a town center event application from The Craftery Market, which is scheduled for Saturday, 
November 18, 2023 from 10:00 am to 4:00 pm. 
  
The application included a request and donation for crossing guards, but no crossing guards are available.  Would there 
be fire police available on November 18th for the duration of the event, who could help attendees cross Market Street at 
the intersection with 7th Street?  If so, the Borough would be happy to give the $108 donation we received for this 
particular item to the Fire Company. 
  
If there are Fire Police available for that date, please let me know as soon as possible so we can put it on the November 
6th Council agenda for approval. 
  
Thank you, Rick! 
 
Sincerely, 
  
Megan 
  
Megan McShane 
Executive Assistant 
Perkasie Borough 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA  18944 
Phone:  215-257-5065 Ext. 109 
Fax:  215-257-7673 
E-Mail:  admin@perkasieborough.org  
  



Perkasie Borough Council seeks 
additional grant money for Kulp Park 
improvements 
 
By JOHN WORTHINGTON | jworthington@montgomerynews.com | 
PUBLISHED: October 17, 2023 at 1:33 p.m. | UPDATED: October 17, 2023 at 3:03 p.m. 
 
PERKASIE — The Perkasie Borough Council on October 16 approved an additional 
grant application for the Kulp Park improvement project. 

Council is requesting a Statewide Local Share Assessment (LSA) grant of roughly 
$650,000 to finance phase two of the improvement project, featuring a refurbished 
baseball field, an updated backstop, additional safety fencing along the dugout area, 
an LED light pole for multi-sport use and wheelchair accessible parking spots and a 
path to the baseball field. 

Borough manager Andrea Coaxum revealed that the borough has already received a 
$200,000 Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) grant for the 
baseball field and is awaiting approval of a $250,000 Department of Community and 
Economic Development (DCED) Greenway, Trails & Recreation grant. 

Council also approved a power supply contract for the years 2026-2030 with a fixed 
rate of $45.87/MWh at Coaxum’s request to ensure budget stability. 

Council also passed a one-year agreement authorizing the Pennridge Little League’s 
utilization of the Lenape Park baseball field, approved an agreement with the Bucks 
County Children’s Advocacy Center to find qualified professionals to interview child 
abuse victims and appointed four new fire police officers, including Jonathan Blum, 
Richard Dunbar, Matthew Bosch and Katrina Pettit. 

The next Perkasie Borough Council meeting is on November 6 at 7 p.m. For more 
information, visit perkasieborough.org. 
 


	2023_11_06 Agenda
	Agenda Item 5 - 2022 Audit Presentation
	Agenda Item 7A - Extension of Commingled Recycling Contract
	Agenda Item 7B - Extension of Solid Waste Disposal Contract
	Agenda Item 7C - Extension of Resid Yard Waste Contract
	Agenda Item 7D - Res 2023-51 - HC Spot for 435 S 9th Street
	Agenda Item 7E - Consider Borough Hall Roof Expenditure
	Agenda Item 8A - Wholesale Power Cost Monthly Report & Acronyms
	Agenda Item 8B - Review Live Pricing Bids
	Agenda Item 9A - Res 2023-52 - Nyce Minor Subdivision
	Agenda Item 12A - Res 2023-53 - LSA Grant Appl - Police Dept.
	Agenda Item 12B - Res 2023-54 - Final Escrow Rel - 900 N Ridge Rd
	Agenda Item 12C - Res 2023-55 - Security Training Svcs Agmt
	Agenda Item 12D - Donation Request - St. Andrew's
	Agenda Item 13A - Event Appl - The Craftery Market
	Agenda Item 14A - Req for Fire Police - The Craftery Mkt
	PB Council Seeks Add'l Grant Money for Kulp Park Improvements



